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FORWARI)

laikipia University is a body corporate established through the taikipia University Charter of l9t
February 2013. As the University continues to grow in leaps and bounds, there is need to give full
disclosrues to the Govemmen! staff and other stakeholders in line with principles of good

govemance and statutory mandate.

This Annual Report highlights major achievements in our programmes and activities in line with
our core mandate of research, education, scholarship, ouheach and consultancy. The Report

provides a factual presentation of the 201

Report also contains financial statements of the unilriy
9. The

items

within Income, Expenses, Assets, Liabilities and
[.eserve1 IBRARY

The year witnessed drafting of various University policies and most r"rartaU! the Financial

Management Policies and Procedures Manual which is expected to improve on financial

management and reporting. In the same year, the University formulated and adopted a new

Strategic Plaa (2018/19-2022/23) that is expected to reposition the University as influential voice on

higher education through transformation ofthe society.

From a financial perspective, the University continues to exhibit resilience in its growth trajectory

amid tough economic times. During the year under review, the University recorded commendable

growth in net surplus, from Kes. 27.93 million in20l7l20l8 to Kes. 63.34 million in 2OlBl2Ol9.
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ABOUT I.IS

Laikipia University was founded in 1929 as a primary school by William Thomas Alfred kvet.

Between 1965 and 1970, the Institution served as a large-Scale Farmers Training College

(LSFIC). The LSFTC was administered by the Ministry of Agriculture and Animal Husbandry. In

October 1979, it was converted into an Animal Husbandry and Industry Training Institute (AHITI)

offering a two-year course leading to a Certificate in Animal Health. In 1990, Laikipia University

was established as a Campus of Egerton University. It remained a campus of Egerton University

between 1990 till 2010 majoring in BEd Arts. In 20ll it became a Constituent University College

of Egerton University until l9th February 2013.

Laikipia University was awarded Charter on I 9 February 20 I 3 by the then President of the Republic

of Kenya; his Excellency Hon. Mwai Kibaki This made the institution a fully-fledged University.

Award of Chaner (196 February, 2013)

Currently, the University has four (4) schools offering various programmes. The schools are;

.1. School of Education.

.l School ofScience and Applied Technology,

.l School ofBusiness and Economics and

* School of Humanities and Development Studies
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VISIONAND IVflSSION

Our Corporate Vision

A University for valued transformation of society

Our Corporate Mission

To serve the students and society through research, education, scholarship, raining innovation,

outreach and consultancy

Our Core values

The key values that underpin what t^aikipia University does are:

* Quality

* Integrity

* Respect
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KEY ENTITY INFOR]VIATION
a) Background Information

Laikipia University is a body corporate established through the Laikipia University Charter of

19fr February 2013.

b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity of the University as stipulated in the Laikipia Univenity Charter of l9h

February 2013. Part II Sec 7(l) of the Charter is to provide directly, or in collaboration with

other institutions, integration of teaching research and effective application of knowledge and

skills.

c) Entity Headquarters

Laikipia University
P. O. Box l100-20300
Nyahururu
Along Nyahunrru -Nakuru Road

d) Entity Contacts

TEL : + 25 4 40) 20 269 65 9 6 :

Qsf f ; +254 7 13-5527611 (0)736-299961

www.laikioia.ac.ke

e) Laikipia University Bankers

(

(i) KCB Group Limited
Nyahururu Branch

P.O.Box 64-20300

NYAHURURU
(iv) Co-operative Bank of Kenya

Nyahururu Branch

P.O.Box 307-20300

NYAHURURU

f) lndependent Auditors
Offrce of the Auditor General

Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O.Box30084-00100

NAIROBI

g) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Oflice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
NAIROBI

(ii) KCB Group Limited
Nakuru Branch

P.O. Box l8-20100
NAKURU

(v) Co-operative Bank of Kenya

Nakuru Branch

P.O.Box 2982-20100

NAKURU

(iii) Equity Bank

Nyahururu Branch

P.O. Box 1048-20300

NYAHURURU

I ition: -1 [ ttttt r\tlr ltrr l il nctl I rdttslr ttnttt rt )n t )l.\t \ trt\

Paee I 6



)

caiRipta Univcrity, Annuat R Aott eL lFinancia[stattnm*for tfu tearEntct 3Ar junc 2019

CORE BUSINESS OF LAIKIPIA UNIVERSITY
The main objectives of the University are stipulated in the Laikipia University Charter of l9s
February 2013. Part II Sec 7(l) of the Charter provides the functions and objectives of the

University which are;

a) To provide directly, or in collaboration with other institutions, integration of
teaching research and effective application ofknowledge and skills;

b) Participate in scholarly work, discovery, transmission, utilization, preservation and

enhancement of knowledge with a view to stimulating intellectual participation of students

in the economic, social, cultural, scientific and technological development of Kenya;

c) Establish centers of excellence, colleges, schools, faculties, institutes, departments,

and other resource and administrative units as may be appropriate;

d) Facilitate student and staffmobility between programmes of study at local, regional,

and intemational universities and institutions;

e) Participate in commercial ventures and activities that promote the objectives of the

institutions;

f) Foster the general welfare ofstaffand students;

g) Develop and provide educational, cultural and professional services that foster

corporate social responsibility in the University and collaborating institutions;

h) Promote equity and socialjustice;

i) Offercontinuingprofessionaldevelopmentopportunities;

j) Conduct examinations for and to grant and confer such academic awards as may be

provided for in the Act and the Statutes;

k) Establish a High Altitude Intemational Sports Training Centre for training teaching

research, and recreation;

l) Contribute to sustainable development of Arid, and Semi-Arid Lands resources of
Kenya;

m) Engage in action research, extension and outreach; and

n) Establish an Information, Communication and Technology hub in teaching, research,

training, outreach and consultancy in the region and globally.

Paee I 7
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, MANAGEMENT AND ETHICS

The following information describes the govemance and legal structure of the University. These

govemance arrangements are for the most part set out in the University Statutes and Regulations

University Council

The University Council is the supreme organ that oversees the running of the University by the

University Management Board and the Senate. The Council provides facilities necessary for

carrying out the academic and administrative work of the University in accordance with the Charter

and Statutes.

The Council is responsible for the govemance of the University and is accountable to the citizens of

this country for ensuring that the University complies with the Law and maintains the highest

standard ofcorporate governance, academic standards and ethics. Accordingly the council attaches

great importance to the generally accepted corporate governanc€ practices and the need to conduct

the activities and operations ofthe University with integrity, quality and respect.

The University Council defines the University strategies, objectives and values and ensures that

procedures and practices are set in place to ensure effective control over financial, sfategic,

operations and compliance issues.

Council Meetings

The Council holds meetings on a regular basis while special meetings are called when it is deemed

necessary to do so.

Committees of the Council

The Council is advised by a range of committees. The Council has set up four principal coflrmittees

and one adhoc committee which meet under well-defined terms of references as set up in Laikipia

University Statutes. This is intended to facilitate efficient decision making of the Council. The

committees are; Finance Investment & General Purposes, Audit" Govemance and Nsk

Management, Human Resource Management, Academic Research and Sealing, StaffAppointrnent's

and Appeals and Grievances Handling which is an adhoc committee.

Audit, Governance and Risk Management Committee

The committee assists the University Council to fulfil its corporate govemance responsibilities and

in particular to:

* Review financial statements before submission to the University Council focusing on

changes of accounting policies, compliance with the International Public Sector

Accounting Standards and legal requirements and the going concern assumption.

Paee I 8
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a Strengthen the effectiveness ofthe intemal audit function.

A Maintain oversight on internal control systems

n Review and make recommendations regarding the University's budgets, financial

plans and risk management.

Finance, Investment and General Purposes Committee of Council

Laikipia University has defined procedures and financial controls to ensure the reporting of
complete and accurate accounting information. These cover systems for obtaining authority for all

transactions and ensuring compliance with the laws and regulations that have sigrificant financial

implications. In reviewing the effectiveness of the intemal control system, the University Council

takes into account the results of work carried out to audit and review the University activities. The

University Council also considers the management accounts for each quarter, reports from each

council committee, annual budgetary proposals, major issues and strategic opportunities for the

University.

Human Resource Management Committee

The Committee reviews and recommends on issues rclating to haining needs, staff r€cruitonents,

promotions, discipline, and staff welfare.

Academic and Research Committee

The Committee reviews and recommends on issues relating to academic and research. The

committee provides direction on scholarly work; establish centres of excellence, schools, faculties,

institutes and departments as may be appropriate.

Univcrsity Management Board

The Vice-Chancellor is the Chairman of the Senate and University Management Board. He is also

the administrative and academic head of the University assisted by two Deputy Vice-Chancellors,

one in Charge of Academic, Research and Students Affairs and the other in-charge of
Administration, Finance and Planning.

University Senate

The University has four Schools (Education, Humanities and Development Studies, Science and

Applied Technology and Business & Economics) and one Institute (Arid Lands Management) that

ofler both undergraduate and postgraduate studies. The University has various support departments.

The Deans are the academic heads in their respective schools supported by chairperson of
deparfnents. Other members of the Senate include Directors heading various directorates in the

University.
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LAIKIPIA UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Dr. Ken Nyaundi,
(PhD, LLM, LLB)

Chairman

Mr. Moses Siruri Marwa
(MSc -HRM, BSc.)

Member

aq

Ms. Pauline Ngari
(MBA, BCom)

Member

Ms.
(MA, BA)
Member

CPA Moses M.
(MBA, BBA,CPA(K), DIPM)
Rep. PS National Treasury

Okowa CPA David Namu
(MBA, BCom, CPA(K), CPS(K))

Member

Dr. Mary W
(PhD, MEd., BEd.)

Rep. PS Ministry of Education

,a'
Ms. Susan Amlango Aletia
(MPH, BEd, Dip. (AGED))

Member

Prof. Kibett Rotich
(PhD, MBA, Msc, BSc.)

Vice Chancellor/Council Secretara
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Council Members'

s/

No Council Mcnbcr

Drtc of

Birth

Drtc of

Appointn.nt Qudificrtionr Erprricncc
I Dr. Kcn Nyrundi,

PhD

(Chaiman)

3nlt96't t0103t20t7 $ PhD - Univcrrity of Capc

Tom (SA)

t LLM-UnivcnityofCapc

Tom (SA)

.l LLB - UoN

>Adv@tc, Marcndc and Nyaundi

A$miatc

2 Ms. Ruth Adhimbo

Okowa (Mcmbcr)

4lat97t toto3/t2017 * BA (Dcmography)-UoN

S MA (Dcmography) - UoN

> Dcmogrshgcr

>CEO - Living Watcr Intcmational

3 Mr. Mos Siruri

Mryq PhD

(Mcmbs)

15121t984 t0103t2017 * MSc-HRM. XUAT
$ BSc (Agnoltursl Educltim

and Extensim) UoN

> Corpomtc Relstionship Mansgcr-

Muufacturing Scctor KCB

i Corponte Banker (Managcrial Lcvel),

KeB Corponte Division

i Lccturcr aad Markaer (Skynct

Busincs Collcgc Nairobi)

4. Ms. Sum Amlango

Aletia (Mcmbcr)

t9tut974 t0lo3l20t7 S Mastcrs of Public Hcalth

(Diestcr Mmagcmcnt and

Prcprcdncss) Moi

Univcrsity.

* BachclorofEducation

Scicncc, Moi Univcmity.

,, Diploms in Agriculturel

Education and Extension,

Egcrton Univcrsity.

i> UN Womcn, Gmdcr Advisor to

Turkana Conty Govcmmcnt

i Monitoring Speialisq Consltant,

DFID: Hungcr Safcty Nct Prqet
)Prcjcct Officcr DFID; Hungcr Safcty

Nct Prcjcct

)Emcrgcnry Prcjcct Officcr - UNICEF

Kenya

5 CPA David Nrmu

Kuiuki (Mcmbcr)

r 5/E/1966 t0t03t20t7 ir MBA( StrEtcgic M81) -, UoN

* Bachclor of Commcrcc, UoN

a CPA(K)

+ cPs(K

iFinrncc md Admin Dircclor, Assurcd

Muagcmcnt Solutions Ltd Financial

> Controllcr, Agrchcmicals and Food

Company Ltd

i Nairobi Safari Club md Sarovr Hotcls

6. Ms. Paulinc Ngri

(Member)

4t6^962 t0103/20t7 O MBA(Entcprcnorship),

JKUAT

+ BCOM (Msrkcting), Egcnon

;} Community Dwclopmcnt Spsialist

)>CEO - Hrnd in Hand Eastcm Africa

7 CPA Moss M.

Gakuru

(Rcp. PS National

Trarury)

4ll/t959 t4^ot20l5 * MBA (KcMLI)

+ BBA (KeMU)

.i CPA(K)

6 Dip inPrcjcctManagcmcnr

(KrM)

> Assistant Dircctor Accounting Sniccs

- Nstional Trcasury

>Chicf Accountmt - Natimal Trasury

iHad of Acwnting (Bilingo Canty

Govmmcnt)

) Progmmc Finrcial Expcrt,

CKDAP/IFAD PROJECT
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t Dr. Mry w

Gaturu, PhD, HSC

(Rcp. PS Ministry

of Educatim)

20lt,/t 3 04.06.20tt o PhD. -Kcnyltta UDivtrJity

o Mcd. (Kmysns Univcrtity)

O B€d. -(Kcnyatta Univslity)

$ Stratcgic Lmdcrship -KSG

>Dirccror, Drcctmtc of Qudity

Asuucc& Standuds-MoE

> Dcputy Dirstor of Education -
Minilry of Eduetio

) Rcgional Cmrdinator of Education -
Rift vrllcy

, Senior Gr.dutc Tcrcher - TSC

9. Prof. Kibcn Rotich,

PhD

(VC/Coucil

Serctsry)

1958 l2 06 2018 O MBA(JKUAT)

O Post Dstoratc in Mcdicsl

Infomatics, (lndiua

UniYcRity-USA )

$ Ph.D. in Mathcmatics,

Shughri Univcnity of

Scicnce aod Tmhnology

o M$. Strtinics. (Uoivcrsity

of Sothampton - UK)

I BSc. Mgthcmatics and

Statirti$, (Univcrtity of

Nairobi)

! Vicc-Chuccllor, Laikipir Univcrsity

i Dcputy Vicc Chanccllor

(Administrstiil ud Finscc) at

Msindc Muliro Univerity of Scicncc

md Tcchnology

> Dcputy Principsl (Aodcmic & Student

Affairs) at Rongo Univ$ity College

i Aaing Principal Guis UdYqsity

Collegc

i Acting Principrl rt Kabirnga Cmpus

i Dcu, Schol of Public Halth at Moi

Udvcnily

i Profcsor ofBiortatistics at Moi

Univcnity

) furcciatc Profcsrcr 8t Moi Univcrsity

> Consltant Bioslt$iciu for

Acrdcmic Modcl for Providing Access

to Hcdth Cuc (AMPATH)
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l.r Council Committecs
Namc of Committee Committcc Members

Finance, lnvestment & General

Purposes

l. Mr. Moses Siruri Marwa - Chairpenon

2. Ms. Ruth Adhiambo Okowa

3. Ms. Susan Aletia

4. Dr. Mary W. Gaturu, PhD

5. Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD. (Vice Chancellor/Council Secretary)

Audit, Governance & Risk

Management

l. Mr. David Namu Kariuki - Chairperson

2. Ms. Pauline Ngari

3. Mr. Moses M. Gakuru

Human Resource Management l. Ms. Susan Aletia - Chairperson

2. Ms. Ruth Adhiambo Okowa

3. Mr. Moses Siruri Manva

4. Mr. David Namu Kariuki

5. Ms. Pauline Ngari

6. Mr. Moses M. Gakuru

7. Dr. Mary W. Gaturu, PhD

8. Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD (Vice Chancellor/Council Secretary)

Academic & Research l. Ms. Ruth Adhiambo Okowa - Chairperson

2. Mr. Moses Siruri Marwa

3. Ms. Susan Aletia

4. Mr. David Namu Kariuki

5. Ms. Pauline Ngari

6. Mr. Moses M. Gakuru

7. Dr. Mary W. Gaturu, PhD

8. Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD. (Vice Chancellor/Council Secretary)
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UNIVERSITY MANAGEMENT BOARD

Kibett
(PhD, MBA, Msc., BSc.)

Vice Chrncellor

(PhD, MSc., MEd., BEd.)
Registrar (Acrdemics Affeirs)

Mr. Joseph K.
(MBA, BA)

Registrar (Admin istration
& Human Capital)

Prof. L. Wanjiku Chiuri,
(PhD, MES, BA)

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic'
Research & Students Affairs)

Ochieng,
(PhD, MCom., BCom)

Ag. Deputy Vice-Chancellor
(Administration, Finance & Planning)

CPA Geofrey K. Langat
(MBA, BBA,(CPA(K))
Ag. Finance Oflicer
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DEANS OF SCHOOLS

Prof. MbuthiaNgunjiri
(PhD, ME4 BEd.)

I)ean, School ofEducation

Dr. Peter Mwaura
(PhD, MBA, BCom.)

Ag. Dean, School ofBusiness

Charles Nguta
(PhD. MSc, BSc.)

Dean, School ofScience and
Applied Technology'

Prof. Vicky Telewa
(PhD. MA, Bed.)

Dean, School of Humenities rnd
Development Studies
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

It is my pleasure, honour, and privilege to present to you on behalf

of the Laikipia University Council, the annual Report and Financial

Statements for the year ended 30u June, 2019. This annual report

helps us to reflect on our performance for the year giving us an

opportunity to celebrate our success and at the same time identifu

areas of improvement. The demand for higher education in the

country has continued to rise prompting the University to

Dr. Ken Nyaundi' PhD continually review its programmes in line with the market demand.

The University will continue to reposition is main brands within the context of market

requirements, customer satisfaction and cost rationalization. The need to meet this objective over

years has remained the central focus of the University Council. Our current management focuses on

expansion of the University while maintaining quality in line with our vision. In line with the COK

policy, the University has increased access to higher education through additional admission of

students. This in effect has led to increase in operation costs and need for more physical facilities.

Overall Performance

The year 201812019 financial performance was achieved through concerted effort by the University

Council, Management Board and the entire staff of Laikipia University. The total income increased

from Kes. l.l4 billion n 201712018 to Kes. 1.25 billion in 201812019 Financial Year. The net

surplus for the year increased from Kes. 27.93 million in 201712018 to Kes. 63.34 million in

2}l8l2}l9 FY. The net assets grew from Kes. 1.303 billion in 201712018 to Kes. 1.95 billion in

21l8l2}l9 FY. This was a good performance and the Council is pleased to confirm that the

University is operating in a sustainable manner.

Strategic Focus

The University continued to perform well in other areas as detailed in the operational highlights

report. The University completed its strategic plan and certification to ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC

27001:2013 is in its final stage. We have aligrred our strategic-focused initiatives to all core areas of

our operations within the University. We believe that these initiatives are fundamental in realization

of improved future financial performance.

Our strategic plan will remain a key reference blueprint for the University in the path of

implementation of our turnaround strategies and strategic focused initiatives. . We have put in place

strategies to take advantage of opportunities in the markets we operate in. We firmly believe that

l'isiur: 1 I ntvrtrtt lor I uluLtl lrdtt\lnrtnltuilt t)l lirt!l\
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implementation of the strategy will enable the University increase its financial strength in the

coming years.

Conclusion

On behalf of the University Council, I would like to congratulate and thank the University

Management and Staff for their diligence and dedication during 2018/2019 FY that have resulted in
a fumaround of the University performance compared to previous year. I would also like to

acknowledge, with appreciation, the invaluable support from my colleagues on the Board which has

helped steer the University's activities and strategies successfully throughout 2}l8l21lg Fy .

I wish to recogtize, with gratitude, the vital support, confidence, loyalty and trust that we have

continued to receive from the Govemment of Kenya through 0re Ministry of Education, Suppliers

and other stakeholders within the industry. The University Council will continue working closely

with University Management Board especially in the next strategic planning cycle. The University

has concluded its five years strategic plan for 2}l8ll9 - 202212023 that we believe will take

Laikipia University to the next level of academic excellence and continue plalng a sigrificant role

in serving society.

Dr. Ken Ph.D

CHAIRMAN - UMVERSITY COUNCIL

)
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STATEMENT FROM THE VICE CHANCELLOR

It is a great honor to note the continued delivery of record financial

results by the University. Certainly, the annual report and financial

statement for the year ended 30m June, 2019 are an indication of a

successful year. I am indeed delighted to be part of the tearn that

delivered such impressive results.

Being my first year in Laikipia University, I want to thank the

Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD University Council, University Managemen! Senate, Heads of

Departments, staffand students who greatly assisted in policy direction that has brought success and

smooth operation in the University.

Over the years. the University has transibrmed itself torvards transtbrming the society. in-line with

its vision "A University lor Valued Transformation of Society". We have continued to aim higher

towards greater competitiveness and efficiency in University operations. The University is keen on

positioning iself as a competitivc regional hub and remains committed to operational excellence

and quality services to students and society that exceed expectations.

The 2018/2019 Annual Report captures the events of the year including physical infrastructure

development and finances. The Report reflects the commitment and determination of the University

to achieve world class excellence, despite the hurdles occasioned by economic down turn and is

impact on recurrent funding from the Exchequer.

The University continued to offer education and training to meet the needs and aspirations ofthe

Kenyan people, as evident in the highlights of academic pn,grammes undertaken in the Schools and

units of the University. Our programmes remain critical in the wake of global economic crisis that

threatens the socio-economic growth ofany developing nation.

Further, as part of world trends and practices, the Report carries detailed information on the

University's financial performance during the year, providing a sunmary of the state of health of

the University as a corporate entity. The Report notes that while there was prudent management of

the human, material and financial resources; the loyalty and commitrnent of staff was critical in

enabling the University to discharge its mandate.

Financial Resources
As a public University, Laikipia University relies heavily on the government funding in order to run

its operations. Although funding from the government has steadily increased over the years, it is not

Paee I l8 (
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commensurate with the increasing number of enrolled govemment sponsored students and the needs

ofthe University. This deficit in funding is particularly pronounced in respect ofCapital Funding

from the National Government which has been on the downward trend. with a view to
supplementing the capitation it receives from the govemment, the Univenity is in the process of
implementing a resource mobilization strategy to address the shortfall.

Review of LU Statutes

The University reviewed its 2013 Statutes and has come up with a Laikipia Univenity Statutes of
2019. Through this review, the University has aligrred its operations to relevant Govemment

Policies and other agencies as required.

Automation of University Operations

The University Council and Management Board is committed to automation of all University

processes to improve service delivery. In this regard, we procured an Enterprise Resource Planning

(ERP) from ABNO Solutions Ltd and its implementation has already started. The new ERP is an

integrated system comprising various interlinked modules in Students Managemen! Financial

Management, Procurement and stores Management, Human Resource Managemen! payroll

Management, students Academics, Timetabling, Hostel Management, Library Management, Health

Management and Students' Portal among others. To improve on University connectivity, we have

procured and expanded intemet connectivity networks (Iocal Area Network - LAN and WIFI) and

also increased hotspots points in the University.

Visibility of the University in the Webo-metrics

During the year under review, the University improved on Webo-metric ranking by 282 steps from

14342 to 14070 intemationally and nationally at 42. The improvement was occasioned by various

factors including staff accessing pay-slips online, uploading of staff profiles on website, lrave
forms on the website, quarterly uploading of publications and proposals, Establishment of students

and staff portals and registration of Academic Staff on Google scholar and Research Cate ampng

others.

Rebrand Schools at the University

The University is committed to quality education to its students. To improve on quality, we

reviewed curriculum for twenty six (26) academic programmes and the School of Business was

renamed to School of Business and Economics

)
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ISO Certilication

The University underwent the process of upgrading from ISO standard 9001:2008 to ISO

9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001:2013. The intention is to refocus the University's quality

management systems to the best global quality management systems and practices and also ensure

security of our information as per ISO certification. The University has met all certification

requirements under the standard, including internal and extemal certification audits.

The Futurc ''

The University developed 201812019 to 202212023 Strategic Plan and aligred it to the "Big Four"

Agenda, Medium-Term Plan III of Kenya Vision 2030 Development Blueprint. The Strategic Plan

will be an important guide and a vibrant tool for Laikipia University in realizing her vision, mission

and objectives. It outlines the future needs and aspirations of all stakeholders, and provides a

framework through which the University would achieve her desired future.

We will continue with the implementation of our five year strategic plan with a view to achieving

the set strategic objectives. We will exercise agility in strategy implementation taking cogrizance of

the expected changes in the intemal and external operating environments. We believes that the set

strategic objectives will steer us to our desired corporate destination

Appreciation

I take this oppornrnity to thank the University Council for their support to the University. I would

also like to thank the Government through the Ministry of Education for its financial support

throughout the year under review and also appeal for more support especially for purposes of

establishing suitable facilities required by the University. I also take this opportunity to thank the

University Management Board for their support as well as the dedicated and talented staff and

students lbr their efIorts in making sure that the Univeruity achievcs its goals and objectives. Lastly.

I appreciate our service providers. suppliers and all other stakeholders for their respective

contributions to the University during the year. We look forward to an even greater and bountiful

year in201912020 Financial Year.

/dm'/ 4--
Prof. Kibett Rotich, Ph.D

Professor of Biostatistics and Informatics

VICE CHANCELLOR

I
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Laikipia University's Corporate social responsibility is based on the fact that, as part ofthe Kenyan

society, we have responsibilities that go beyond our legal obligations for the benefit ofthe society at

large. our corporate social responsibility (cSR) entails community engagemen! supporting

community activities, responding to emerging challenges, donating to charities, helping the needy

and application ofethical conduct and participating in ma$ers oftopical national interest in Kenya.

Our CSR involves building relationships and partnerships and working together with organizations

that we believe advance the wellbeing of Kenyans.

During the year under review, the Univenity participated in the following cSR activities;

a) Supporting the less fortunate in society

Laikipia University endeavors to support the less fortunate students in the University. The

University awarded Kes. 1,000,000 as bursaries to the needy students during the year.

The University also assists needy students with furancial support under the work study programme.

During the year under review, the University paid Kes. 703,900 to assist the needy students under

this programme.

b) EnvironmentalConservation

The University held an environmental week in during the year where staff and students participated

in hee planting exercise.

c) Free Health Clinic

The University organizes a health week annually ollering free medical check-ups to staff, students

and the Community.
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REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

The University Council submits this report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended June 30, 2018 which show the state ofthe Laikipia University's affairs.

a. Principalactivities

The principal activities ofLaikipia University is teaching, training, research and outreach

b. Results for the Year

The results of Laikipia University for the year ended June 30, 2019 are set out on pages 50-54.

c. Directors

The members of the University Council who served during the year are shown on page 10.

d. Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Laikipia University in accordance

with the Section l5(2) of the Public Audit Act, 2003.

By Order of the Council

Vice-Chancellor

Laikipia Univenity

nut", .?l.t.f9.ttember 
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STATEMENT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Laikipia University Council members are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements set out on pages 50 to 54 which comprise the statement of financial
position for the year ended 30fi June, 2019, statement of financial performance, statement of
cash flow, statement ofchanges in reserves for the year then ended, and a summary ofsignilicant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The Council members responsibility includes: determining that the basis of accounting described in
note l, is an acceptable basis for preparing and presenting the financial statements in the
circumstances; desigring, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are rcasonable in the circumstances.

The Laikipia University Charter requires the University Council to prepare statements for each
financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University at the end of
the financial year and its operating results for that year. It also requires the council to ensure that the
University keeps proper accounting records, which disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial
position ofthe University. The University Council is also responsible for safeguarding the Assets of
the University.

The University Council accepts the responsibility for the financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudentjudgments and
estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards. The University
Council is of the opinion that the statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial
affairs ofthe University as at 30th June 2019 and ofits operating results.

The University Council further accepts responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records,
which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statement, as well as adequate systems of
Intemal Financial Controls.

The Council has made arl assessment of the University's ability to continue as a going concem and
nothing has come to their attention to indicate that the University will not remain a going concem
for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements, as indicated above were approved by the University Council and were
signed on its behalfby;

'-c-rrao .r--9 -

Dr. KerlNyaundi, Ph.D

EHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

//{/hb*rJ-
Prof. Kibett Rotich, Ph.D

VICE CHANCELLOR
)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AI\D AI\IALYSIS

Section A: Laikipia University's Operational and Financial Performancc

l. OperationalHighlights
This section highlights on; planned activities, achievements, challenges, and way forward of the

University Divisions in the 2018/2019 Financial Year.

l.l OIIice of the Vice Chancellor

The Vice Chancellor who is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Secretary to the University

Council, having successfully been appointed as the Vice-Chancellor Laikipia University for five

years as from June 13,2018 shared his five year Vision for the University. The realization ofthe

Vision commenced during the 2018i2019 FY as reflected in the following:-

Planned Activities

The office of the Vice Chancellor had the following planned activities during the 201812019 FY

o Re-organize and restructure ofthe University operations

o Restructure, re-engineer and modernize the University land

. Utilize forest water streams

o Collaborations

. Automate University operations

. Develop a harmonized organizational framework

. Improve the visibility of the University in the Webo-metrics

. Complete on-going/new development Projects

o Rebrand Schools at the University

o Operationalize Finance Regulations Manual

r Operationalize Human Resource (HR) Manual

Achievements
Re-organize and restructure ofthe University operations

Review of LU Statutes

The University reviewed its 2013 Statules and has come up with a Laikipia University Statutes of
2019. Through this review, the University has aligred its operations to relevant Govemment

Policies and other agencies as required. The review of the Statutes established the following:-

r Directorate of Career Placement, Alumni and TVET,

r Directorate ofExternal Linkages,

o Directorate of Human Nghts and Gender Affairs'
. Directorate of Corporate Affairs,

r Directorate of Resource Mobilization,
o Directorate of ICT,
. OIfice of Corporation Secretary.
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Development of LU Strategic Plan 2018/19 to 2022t23
The University developed 2018/2019 lo 202212023 Strategic Plan and aligned it to the ..Big Four"
Agenda Medium-Term Plan III of Kenya Vision 2030 Development Blueprint. The Strategic plan
will be an important guide and a vibrant tool for Laikipia University in realizing her vision, mission
and objectives. It outlines the future needs and aspirations of all stakeholders, and provides a
framework through which the University would achieve her desired future.

Others Policies

The University has also reviewed and developed a number of University Policies amongst them;
i. Human Resource Management Policy and Manual,

ii. Financial Management Policies and procedures Manual.

iii. Examinations Policy,

iv. Postgraduate Policy,

v. StaffEstablishment.

vi. Citizen Service Charter.

Restructure, re-engineer and modernize the Universitv land

i. Developed University Farm Business plan

ii. Recruited Farm Manager

iii. Established distinct commercial farm and demonstration farm

iv. Procured tractor and its accessories

v. Input crops and animals.

Newly Acquired Farm Tractor
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Utilize forest wrter streams

i. Operationalized water bottling plant

ii. Secured water source points

Collaborations
The University sigred Memorandum of Understandings (MoUs) with the following institutions;

i. International Commission of Jurists (ICJ) - Kenya Section,

ii. County Govemment of LaikiPi4

iii. Kenya National Human fughs Commission (KNHRC)

iv. County Government of Nyandarua,

v. "I Choose Life"

vi. Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Organization (KALRO),

vii.HUAWEI Academy.

viii. Zalego A Software Technology Institute on Software Development,

ix. Initiated Collaborations with University New South Wales, Australia

Automation of University Operations

i. The University Procured an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) from ABNO Solutions Ltd.

lmplementation is in progress. The ERP comprises of the following;
o Students Management,

o FinancialManagement,

. Students Academics,

o Timetabling,

o Hostel Management,

o Students'Portal,

o Procutement and Stores,

o Human Resource Managemenl

o Payroll Management

. Library Management,

o Health Management,

o Catering Management,

o Asset Management, and

. SMS Integration.

ii. Procured and expanded internet connectivity (tocal Area Network - LAN and WIFI),

iii. Increased hotspots Points,

iv. Initiated process of procuring Biometric equipment.

Develop a harmonized organizational framework
i. Launched Information Security Management System (ISMS) Based on ISO/IEC

27001:2013,

ii. Conducted Certification Audit for ISO/IEC 27001.,2013 awaiting award of certificate by

Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS),

t
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iii. Migrated from Quality Management system (eMS) Based on ISo 9001:200g to ISo
9001:2015 awaiting certificate by Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS),

iv. Revised the University Organogram,
v. Developed and implemented the University Risk mitigation Plan on Comrption prevention,
vi. Mainstreamed National Cohesion and National Values Structures and Guidelines in the

University. The certificate of compliance awarded by the Commission.

Improve the visibility of the University in the Webo-metrics
The university improved on webo-metric ranking by 2BZ steps from 14342 to 14070
internationally and nationally at 42.The improvement was occasioned by:-

o Staffaccessing pay-slips online,

o Uploading of staffprofiles on website,

o Quarterly uploading ofpublications and proposals,

o Establishment of students and stalfportals,

o Registration of Academic Staffon Google scholar and Research Gate,

o Publishing of Periodic Digital Online Newsletter-Info point,

. Revamping the University Website.
Complete on-going/new development Projects
During the year, the following projects have been on-going and the completion rates for the projecfs
were as follows;

Project Name Completion Rate (Status)
Ongoing Projects

a) Sigrature Gate 95o/o

b) Library and Administration Block 87"/o

c) Tuition Blocks 7l%
d) Equipping Science Lab 560/o

e) Extension of local Area Network (LAN) 40o/o

f) Equipping Media Studio 40o/o

New Projects

a) Science Complex Project (New Project) l0o/o

b) Sports Fields and Pavilion 40%

Rebranding of Schools at the University
i. Reviewed Curriculum for 26 Academic Programmes

ii. Renamed School of Business to School of Business and Economics

+

I'ision: 1 l ntv'nrlt'litr lilwl lrunthrnuttttt t)1 .\:/)(trtl

Pasel2T



Lai{ipw 0 niv nit1, Annua[ Qgport o(,lFiwttcit[sutinon*for tfie tearEn[el 3(lr lurw 2019 { e

1.2 Academic Division

The academic division is headed by the Deputy Vice Chancellor (Academic, Research and Students

Affairs) formerly Deputy Vice Chancellor (Academic and Research). During the 2018/2019 FY the

division reflected on the following:-

a) Planned Activities
The division had the following targets outlined for the 2018/2019 FY;

. Employment of Academic Staff in core areas of teaching and research

. Agnbusiness pilot training

o Enhancement of lnternal Quality Assurance

o Improve on Research, Innovation and Consultancy

o Improvement on Students' Welfare

r Organize graduation for students completing studies during the period

b) Achievements

The academic division was able to achieve the following;

o Recruited four (4) Lecturers

o Trained twenty (20) students on Entrepreneurship in Agribusiness,

o Conducted an lntemal Quality Assurance Audit to establish the Part Time Lecturers

engagement (academic qualifications) and course allocation process

o Conducted one Teaching Ellectiveness Evaluation in the Main Campus.

o Acquired 800 titles (three core texts per academic programme) for the twenty-eight (28)

University programmes

o Installed KOHA- an Open Source System - for Integrated Library automated services.

e Acquired assorted equipment for the Communication and Media Teaching Studio with

additional equipment

o Increased Scientific Publications from 30 to 43 in referred Joumals

o Improved on Research and Development expenditure from 1.96"/o to 2.260/" on total

recurrent budget

. Participated in Nyandarua County Mega Career Fair, Laikipia County Innovation week

and Karima career fair.

o Placed students on work study and bursary progftIm to the tune ofone million shillings.

o The University in partnership with the Laikipia University Alumni donated reading

shades to the green library.

o Conducted mentorship sessions to l0 surrounding schools in the surrounding community

o Trained Administration Police in Nakuru and Kisumu on leadership skills

. Graduated 2,065 students; (12 PhDs,3l Masters, 1,806 Bachelors and216 Diplomas)

o Trained Students lraders on leadership

r Held Laikipia University Annual Half Marathon

o Conducted Grant Proposal Writing Workshop

o Funded five (5) intemal research proposals

o Established Ethics Review Committee and Office
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o Established and launched a childcare centre for student mothers/fathers named HYMA
Daycare.

o Conducted an audit to establish state of welfare for students residing in University
hostels and offcampus.

o Conducted a baseline survey on students counseling services in the University.
o Developed a Curriculum for small scale farmers.

1.3 AdministrationDivision

The division is headed by the Deputy Vice Chancellor (Adminishation, Finance and Planning)
formerly Deputy Vice Chancellor (Administration, Finance and Development). During the
2018/2019 FY the division reflected on the following:-

a) Planned Activities

Financial Management
. Budgeted to collect Kes. 1.586 B for recurrent revenue
o Planned to collect Kes. 199.5M from debtors
o Planned to absorb 100%ofallocated funds
o Payment of Prior year Part-Time kcturers at Kes. l73M
r Payment of Prior year Suppliers at Kes. 48M
r Prepre and implement Finance Policy Manual by 30fr June, 2019
. To receive and account for Gok capital grants at Kes. 287. I M
o To absorb 100% ofCapital Projects funds allocated.

Human Resource Management
r Enhance Competence Development
r Improve StaffWelfare
. Build Capacity for staff
o Recruitments and staffreviews
o Provision for internships and attachments

Other Planned Activities
i. Maintenance and Repairs of University property, plant and equipment
ii. Standardization and Quality assurance
iii. Procurement ofgoods and services
iv. lmprove University security

Achievements
o Recnrited four academic staffand three non-academic staff,

. Procured a modem ambulance to enhance access and response to emergencies and quality
medical services to stafi students and surrounding community,

. Operationalized University Budget Implementation Committee (BIC),

. Decentralised budget to functional service Departments,

o operationalized contact Implementation committee (cIC) for all capital projects,

o Placed 6 youths on internships, 53 students on internal attachments and 27 external
attachments,

o Conducted skills gap analysis,,
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r Conducted Training Needs Assessment,

r Enhanced staffcapacity on Disability Mainstreaming and facilities,

e Conducted staffreviews and promotion for qualified staffin all cadres,

o Operationalized AIDS Control Unit,

o Acquired Biochemistry analyser and Haematology machines

. Inspected, procured and refilled all fire extinguishers,

o Surpassed the 307o Access to Govemment Opportunities in Procurement (AGPO)'

o Surpassed the 407o promotion of local content in procurement (Buy Kenya Build Kenya),

r Initiated Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) negotiations.

. tcgally acquired titles deeds for Main, Nyahururu Campuses,

o Mitigated on theftlburglary incidences,

o Conducted fire drills, established fire assembly points and increased awareness on fire

safely,

r Put in place Financial Control mechanisms that led to reduction ofaudit quarries,

r Reduced on pending bills fiom Kes. 167o to 7.68o/o,by paying Kes. 56.7M to prior year Part-

Time tecturers and Kes. 34.8M to prior year suppliers,

o The University managed to receive and collect revenue amounting to Kes.l.2478. This was

7 8.60/o o f tar geted amount.

. The University managed to collect Kes' 21.5M from her debtors.

. The University absorbed 92.5o/o of her allocated funds

. The University has prepared Finance Policy Manual awaiting approval

o The University received and accounted for Gok capital grants at Kes. 2l . I M.

r The University absorbed I 3.5% ofthe allocated Capital Projecs funds.

tt
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Newly Acquired University Ambulance
{
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Challenges
The University faced the following challenges in the achievements of the planned activities:
o Inadequate financial resources;

r Limited physical and non-physical infrastructure;
o Inadequate academic staffin key areas ofspecialization;
o Insufficient competent staff to develop fundable proposals, projects and programmes;
o Insuflicientmarketingactivities;
o Limited automation of university processes thereby affecting intemal control systems;
o Inadequatecommunicationchannels;
o low attraction ofSelfSponsored students;
o Reliance on declining funding from Govemment;
o Increased competition in tertiary and higher education, nationally, regionally and globally;
. High inflation rates leading to increased operational costs;
o Changes in legislation and govemment policies;
. Increased insecurity locally and globally;
r Student unrest and stafflabour relation issues.

Way Fonvard

The University can exploit on the following in order to mitigate on the challenges;
. Conducive learning environment.
o Existence of demand driven academic programmes.
o Utilize the available land for expansion, infrastrucfural development, research and income

generating activities.
r Effective govemance structures for managing the University.
. Implementation of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software to fully automate University

processes and enhance intemal control systems.
. Strong alumni for networking and rcsource mobilization.
o Existence ofindigenous forest ecosystem.
o Existence ofnatural streams.

o Existence ofcollaborations with local and intemational partners.
. Unique location of the University within the northem frontier of Kenya that covers Arid and

Semi-Arid tand (ASAL).
. High altitude that supports training in athletics and sports progranrmes.
o Proximity to Central Kenya and South Rift tourist circuit areas.
o Demand for TVET and higher education locally, regionally and globally.
o Demand for research, training, innovation and consultancy services by the National

Govemment, County Governments, private sector and Non-Govemmental Organisations
(NGOs).
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2. FinancialHighlights

The University has a responsibility to ensure a valued transformation of society through research,

education scholarship, raining, ouEeach and consultancy. The University's ongoing sustainability

is dependent upon the generation of a suflicient surplus to invest in the maintenance, renewal and

replacement of the infrastructure to support academic endeavor, such as libraries, tuition rooms,

laboratories, ICT infrasructure and research equipment. It is also dependent upon the University's

ability to fulfill its ambitious strategies concerning the recruitnent, reward and development of

stafl, the dissemination of knowledge, and the development of new ways of working and studying

for staff and students. The University has had a weak financial base up-to 2016117 FY but has

improved in2017/18 and 2018/19 FY as evidenced by the following financial highlights. Financial

performance has been analyzed through financial statements as follows;

Five Year Summary of Key Statistics

Statement of Financial Performance

REVENUE

Rwerue from Non+rchange Trtnlectionr
GoYemment Grmts ( RecEmt)
Crmts & Donations

Rweaue from ErchsDge Trsrs8ction!
Studats'Fes
Oth6 Incom€s

Totrl Rfleoue
EXPENDITURE
staff costs
AdminisEative Expmses

Repairs & Maintmuce Expms€s

Contrscted Sflices
Academic & Reseuch Experes
Studmts Welfrc
Coucil Experoe
Fime Chrge
Dcpreiation
Provision for Bad Debts

Loss on DisposVDe-recognition
TotEl

OperrtlnS Surplus(Delicia)

Other Seryice Units
Fm Profit/(Inss)
Carering Profit(Loss)
Bmkshop/lr,ledical Proftt/( tpss)

Totrl Other Seryie UDits

Totrl Surplu(Deficit)

20tat20t9

(30.062019)

861,921,103

323,430

862244932

3M,'780,479

40,222348
3Es,UB'267

879,832,268
'13,922,463

7.595,057

2,61,644
181,082,677

14,0,133
9,522,411

0

14,933,140

(2,4 ,O52)
r,492,763

I,t82,655,105
64593,09s

(744.7o',r\

(503,70s)

0
(1r4E,412)

61344,6{l:}

2011llE

(30.0,61018)

K*

192,297,868

0

792297$6

343.616,t I I
't.972j6

35158t6r7

124,205,154

0

724305,1s4

459,342,t03

43,482,2t2
502,t24314

958,t64,93't
78,901,989

7,494,282

5.1 87.510

I 57,936,81 2

16,t4'7,456

9,l04',372

1,862,004

22,44t, 9

l,31 1,091

0

r258,s52,42O
(3r,s22p52)

3,1 56,595
( 1.93 1,741 )

(36,4'7'7)

1,188,376

(30334576)

541.335,522

16,500

547352,Utz

45'1,695,249

62,058,596

519,753145

766,420,213

I 03.586.1 07

9,552,201

5324,231

174,830,510

12.286,294

8.979;t41
t,862,025

24,467;132

6,693,066

0

I,l 14,006,132
(46,9m363)

250,1 86
(2.2't 1.8551

( 19r,1 96)

(2212,&41

(49,r 13,r29)

20l4no,5

(30.061015)
Ke

516,328,950

I ,24 I,500
517,570,450

358,499,837

6,186,754

364,6t6591

642,791,575

96,44a,29t
tt,927,554
6,242,523

t'78,518,422

I 5,369,989

9.384.096

1,862,004

25,430,323

14,653,995

0

r,002,628,769
(t2037r,729)

143,@2

16,552

540,885

700',|s8

(r r9.671r90)

20t6t2017 2015/2016

(30.061014 (30.062016)

K*Ke,K6.

r24724f,2$ I,143r886,4E5 t227,U29,468 1,067,105,t66 8t2257,Ur

869,1 8t,221

5'1,6',12,803

t2,261,132
6,088,994

130,807,528

9,438,105

|,221,762
t,@2,@7

t4,732,170

2,294,816

0

1,114,790,629

29,095,856

(1.746.18'7)

I I 5,844

459,728

(1,170615)

27925241
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Statement of Finencial Position

DETAIT^s

ASSETS

Current Asets
Coh & C*h Equivalmr
Recivabla from Exchmge Tmsetioro
Rervabls fiom Non-exchmge Troctrore
Invatories
Toall Currcna Asets

Non- Current Aslets
Prop€rty, Plilt md Equipmmt
Library Brck
IntanSibl€ Assts (ERP Softwrc)
Biological Aswts
Totrl Noa- Currot Asetg
Totrl Alset!
LIABILITlES
Curetrt Lirbiliti6
Ovqdmm Cuhbooks
Ammts Pryables

Totrl Currcnt Uebiliti6
Notr-Cu rrent Lisbiliti6
hng Tm Liabilities
Totll Notr- Currot Lirbiliti6
Totsl Lilbiliti6
NET ASSETS

Financed By:
Capital Reswe
Revmue Rewes (SuQlut(Defi cit))
Revaluatio Rewe -Urealized Gain
Tot l

20t6t20t9

(30.06.2019)

K*

22.292.890

20t,852,859

7'7,269,549

l'l,6't6,9to
3rq(D2r(B

2,O30,'723,264

8,782,306

I 5,1 25,700

5,624j@
2,0602ss,77O

2319447,978

20t7llE

(30.0610r8)

K6,

85,046,132

224.576.709

0
t3,75't.O9t

323379p32

1,420,175,9'18

93.538

t0,163,220

6,03 t,1 00

l,€6,463,836

\759$43,767

201612017

(30,06.2017)

Kq

93,932,304

203,923,361

I 50,167,541

16,352,@8

4643752s4

1,3'79,t63,790

228,9t6
9,4t3,220
4,847,000

r393,652,926
1,E58,02&179

2015n016

(30.061016)

K6.

20r4t2015

(3(t(x.20lt
Ks.

14,324.339

192,123,544

0

19,764,559

2262t2,443

1,229.081.772
'798.9'12

9,329,220

6,043,500

1245253,$4
1.471.465.W

19,564,380

l3 1,885,953

43,O27,413

15,272,741

2O9,7fi,47

1,t84,779,229

I,808.2s4

9,329,220

6,954,000

r2o2,E7O.7B
t,4l2j62l,tgo

6,861,147

417,476,902

424,734,U9

0

0
424,7)&M9

L9g.6tEgt0

1,547,',l 52,095
(r 57,878,9s7)

564,736,792

J$r.609pr0

81 1,959

456,447,2U
45725924t

0

o
457,59243

IJI2.5E4524

r,526,61 2,088
(224,02'1,s63)

0

Il02M.t21

8,206,2@

574,O29,3M

582135.564

2,533,332

2,533J32
sE4,76&896

t4[1z!9.2E1

1,525,212,088

(251,952.804)

a

,tz&t592!1

t4,482,9a7

364,884,1 60
379367,147

6,333324
6313328

$17m,475
uqfz6l412

1,307,383,660

(22t,618.228)

56,383,338

311,672,315

36&055,6ss

l0,r 33,332

t0.t3:iJ32
378,18E 9t5

f.lE4rll22lUl

1,206,931,304

(r ?2.50s,099)

L005.2{L41e J.E{.412.201

i) Statcmcnt of Financial Pcrformrnce

A trend analysis on financial performance shows fluctuating deficits from 20l4ll5 to 2016/17

and a surplus n 2017/18 and 20 I 8/2019. The University had a surplus of Kes.63,3,14,683 in the

year ended 30ft June, 2019 compared toKes.27,925,241 n 2Ol7l1B financial year.

a) Revcnuc Analysis

In the period under r€view, 0re University reported total revenue of Kes.1,247,248,200

compared to Kes. 1,143,886,485 for similar period ended 30th June, 2018 in the last financial

year. This was composed ofgovernment grants at Kes. 861,921,103, grants & donations at Kes.

323,830, students' fees at Kes. 344,780,879 and other income at Kes. 40,222,388. Govemment

grants were the highest contributor of revenue at 69.110/o of the total revenue. Revenue

composition percentages are as highlighted in the diagram below;

l isirn: I I Dt\\'r\ttt hr.l',tlili,l I r,tn\hnntttt,'D,,1.\:,\ h.tl
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l: R€venue

A comparison ofthe current period ended 30s June, 2019 with similar period ended 30s June 2018

for the furancial 2}l7l2}l8 indicates growth in all revenue categories. Govemment grants grew by

8.8% to Kes. 861.9 Million in 2}l8ll9 from Kes. 792.3 Million in a similar period for 2017118.

Students' fees also increased by 0.4o/oto Kes. 344.8 Million, up from Kes. 343.56 Million in similar

period last financial Year2017l20l8. Grants and donations increased by Kes.323'830 in 2018/19.

Other incomes have grown by 400o/o compared to a similar peiod20l7l20l8. Cumulatively, all

revenue categories grew by 9%o Included in other income for the current Iinancial year, is

Kes.l4,ll5,500 for insurance claim in respect of the bumt building (former ICT & Examinations).

Revenue comparisons for the two financial years are highlighted as follows;

Revenue Comparison

20t812019 201112018

Revenue Category (31.03.2019) (31.03.2018) 7o Change
Kes. Kes. %

GovemmentGrants( Recurrent) 861,921,103 792,297,868 88%
Students'Fees 344,780,879 343'558'893 0.4%

Grants & Donations 323,830 0 **

Other Incomes 40,222,388 8'029,724 400.9%

Totel Revenue 1,247,248,200 I'143'8E6'485 9.0o/o

b) Expenditure Analysis

TheUniversityincurredatotalexpenditureofKes. I,l82,655,l05atthecloseofperiodended30hJune,

2019. Staff cost had the highest expenditure at Kes. 879.98 million translating to 74.4%o of the total

recurrent expenditure. This was followed by academic and research expenses at Kes. 181.08 million

(15.3%) while admininistrative expenses look6.30/o of the total expenditure. Depreciation on plant and

equipment was Kes. 14.93 million (1.3%). Our depreciation policy stipulates full annual depreciation on

all asset in the year ofacquisition with no depreciation charge in the year ofdisposal. The University

Pase I 34
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did not incur any expenditure on finance charge as there was no long term liability to incur loan

interests after completion of repayment of Equity bank loan in the previors financial year. Council

expenditure for the year ended 30t June, 2019 was Kes. 9.52 million translating to 0.8% ofthe total

expendture. Provision for bad & doubtful debts decreased by Kes. 2.5 Million during the period

translating to '0.2% of the total expenditure. The total recurrent expenditure is as highlighted in the

diagram below;

Figure 2: Consolidated University Expenditure

Council Expenses,

o.8%
Students Welfare,

1.2%
Academic &

Finance Charge,0.0%

Depreciation,

1.3%

Research Expenses,

contr..t.o l8iiff.r,

Repairs &

for Bad 
- staff costs

Debts, {.2%

Loss on
I Administrative Expenses

Disposal/Derecogniti/ Repairs & Maintenance
on'oj% 

rcontractedservices
Maintenance,

0.6% r Academic & Research Expenses

v Students Welfare

v Council Expenses

v Finance Charge

u Depreciation

s Provision for Bad Debts

v Loss on Disposal/Derecognition

Expenses,

Staff Costs, 74.4%

A comparison of recurrent expenditure for 201812019 FY with similar period ended 201712018 Fy
indicates a slight growth in total expenditure by 6.1%. This comprises a minimal increase of staff
costs by l.2o/o, academic and research expenses by 38/%q Adminishative expenses by 2g.2%o\ and

students'welfare by 49.4o/o.The high increase on the students'welfare was as a result of high level

support by the University to students' activities through the students' miscellaneous expenses which

increased to Kes. 2,370,350 from Kes. 731,620 for the similar period ofthe last financial year as

shown in note 12 to financial statements. On the other hand, repairs and maintenance expenses

decreased by 38.1% while contracted services decreased by 56.20/o. Depreciation charge increased

by l.4o/o from Kes.14,732,170 in2ol'rll2ol9 to Kes.14,933,740 in2018/2019 Fy. The decrease on
provision for bad debts by 208.1% was as a result ofdecrease in receivables. [,oss on disposal,/ de-

recognition increased by Kes. 1.49 million. This comparison is as highlighted below;

I ition: 1 I tiltr\ilr l/)r lilttl I rtnstu,rn,ttttnt tt .\;), trtt
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Recurrent Expenditure Comparison

Expenditure Cetegory

StaffCosts
Administrative Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance

Contracted Services

Academic & Research Expenses

Students Welfare

Council Expenses

Finance Charge

Depreciation
Provision for Bad Debts

Loss on Disposal/De-recognition

Totel

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

8'19,832,268

73,922,463
7,595,057

2,667,644
181,082,677

14,096, I 33

9.522,41
0

t4,933,740
(2,490,052)

1,492,763

1.182,655,105

2017t2018
(30.0,6.2018)

Kes.

869, l 8l,221
57,672,803

12,26t,112
6,088,994

I 30,807,528

9,438, l 0s

1,221,762
1,092,O97

14,732,t70
2,294,8t6

0

1,114,790,629

o/o

Change
o/o

1.2%

28.2%

-38.1%

-56.2%

38.4%

49.404

-t5.1%
-100 0%

t.4%
-208.5o/o

6.lo

c) University Surplus/(Deficit)

The University reported a cumulative surplus of Kes.63,344,683 in the financial year ended 30ft

June, 2019. Included in total surplus is Kes.64,593,095 from University operations, a loss of Kes.

744,707 liom Farm operations and Kes. 503,705 from Catering Department operations. Medical

Department was moved and accounted for under main University operations during the year. Profit

liom Medical Unit amounting to Kes. I,165,530 by end of second quarter was transferred to

University surplus as medical is not classified under prolit units. Deficits and surpluses are as

highlighted in the figure below;
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iD Statement of Financial Position

An analysis on the statement of financial position for the past 5 years shows that the University

Net Assets have increased from Kes. 1.03 billion in2014/15 to Kes. 1.95 billion as at 30s June.

2019. An analysis Financial Position items is as follows;

a. University Assets Analysis

In order to achieve the objective of improving teaching and leaming, the University has

invested in physical facilities. This is shown by consistent increase in total asset from

Kes.l.4l3 billion in 2014/15 fiscal year to Kes.2.379 billion in 2}l8l2}l9 fiscal year. This

represents 680% increase since 2014/15. The high increase fiom Kes.l.76 billion in

201712018 to Kes.2.379 billion in 2018/2019 was as a result of upward assets revaluation.

The trend is as shown below;

2,060

2,m0 7,760

1,500 1,245

4:

2,500

6

-
,l
oI

I CURFENTASSETS

FrxEo AssErs

TOTATASSETS

5m

o

323 319226

,*d ,*n* "-"-' "nC "Cb. University Liabilities Analysis

On the other hand, a trend analysis on University liabilities indicates an increasing trend in all

years with a slight decrease in20l7l20l8 and2018/19 fiscal years. Total liabilities stood at

Kes. 425.33 Million as at 30'h June, 2019. This is as analyzed below:
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c. Ratio Analysis

A ratio analysis indicates weak liquidity in the fourth quarter of20l8/2019 fiscal year. An ideal

position should have a liquidity ratio2l and a quick ratio of l:1. Due to the weak liquidity

ratios, the University is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Currently, the

University can only be able to meet about 72oh of its financial obligations compared to 68% in

the 201':7118 financial year as indicated by the quick ratio. This has led to high level ofpayables

to suppliers of goods & services and part-time teaching cost. Ratio analysis is as shown below;

Balance Sheet Ratio AnalYsis
Item 201812019 201712018

Assets Kes. Kes.

Current Assets (CA) 319,092'208 323,379,932

Frxed Assets (FA) 2,060,255,770 1,436,463,836

Total Assets 2'379,347,978 l'759,843,767

Liabilities
Current Liabilities (CL)
Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

lnventory

Liquidity Retio (CA/CL)

Quick Ratio (CA- Inventory)/CL))
Working Capital Changes (lncrease/Decrease in
Working Capital)

4',17,8'76,902

0

417,876,902

17,6't6,9t0

0.16

o.72

(96,629,300)

456,447,284
0

456,447,284

13,757,091

0.71

0.68

13,343,030
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iiD Statement of Cash Flow

The statement of cash flows shows reconciliation between the opening and closing cash

balances. The reconciling items are classified under cash generated from operations, investing

and financing activities. Cash flows from the various activities for the year ended 30ft June,

2019 are as summarized below;

Summary of Cash llows 20ttt20lg 2}t7t20l8
Cash flow
Net Operating cash flows ( 16,858, I 14) 56,000,,t41
Investing Activities e3,084,j22) (56,35g,980)
Financing Activities 2t ,l4O,N7 ( 1,133,332)
Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (69,g02,429) (1,491,E71)

The University generated net cash inflows fiom operation of Kes.(l6.86) million in Z}lgl2}lg
compared to Kes.56 million in 201712018 financial year. On investing activities, the University
used Kes.73.08 million as at the end of 306 June, 2019 compared to Kes.56.4 million in similar
period oflast financial year. The current investing expenditure includes Kes.38.6 million on the

ongoing capital projects and Kes.34.5 million on purchase ofplant and equipment. plant and

Equipment includes a tractor at Kes.2.8 million, an ambulance at Kes.5.5 million and payment

of first installment on acquisition of an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERp) software at

Kes.4.96 million. The University reported net financing cash-flows of Kes. 2l.l million
compared to Kes.l.l million in last financial year. This included Kes.2l.l million GoK
capitation disbursed by the govemment through the Ministry of Education for funding of
capital projects.

The cash flow results are presented graphically as shown in the following figure;
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iv) Statement of Changes in Reserves

Laikipia University maintains three types of reserves, i.e. capital, revenue and revaluation

reserves. The total reserves for the year ended 30s June, 2019 was Kes. 1.955 billion

compared to Kes. 1.30 billion in last financial year. Total Reserves comprised of capital

reserves at Kes.l,54?,752,095 in 2}l8ll9 compared to Kes. 1,526,612,088 in last financial

year. The University reported revenue reserves of Kes. (157,878,957) in 201812019 compared

to Kes. (224,648,135) in the 201712018 financial year. The University created a revaluation

reserve during the year closing at Kes.564,736,792 as a result of revaluation of assets. An

analysis ofreserves for 2018/2019 financial year was as indicated below;

Figure 7: Reserves
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Section B: Compliance with Statutory Requirements

Section 83 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, requires that an Accounting Offrcer for a

National Government owned Entity to prepare a report for each quarter of the financial year in

respect of the entity. Laikipia University complies with this requirement and submits quarterly

reports to the Ministry of Education and the National Treasury & Planning.

Section C: Key Projects snd Investment Decisions

The University is currently in the process ofupgrading to a state ofthe art University. The ongoing

development projects are Tuition Blocks, Library and Administration Block and Science

Laboratories among others.
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Section D: Major Risks Facing Laikipia University

The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit and liquidity

risks. The University's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes

in the business environment and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects of such risks on its

performance by setting acceptable levels ofrisk.

) Credit Nsk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting

in financial loss to the University. The University's credit risk is primarily attributable to its

receivables.

! Liquidity Risk

This refers to the risk of institution's inability to meet its obligations as they fall due. The ultimate

responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the University Management Board, which

has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the

University's shor! medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The

University manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and through continuous

monitoring offorecasts and actual cash flows.

Section E: Material Arrearc in Statutory/Financial Obligations

Pending bills at the close of financial year ended 306 June, 2019, amounted to Kes.417,876,,902.

This includes salary and statutory deductions payable accruing prior periods currently standing at

Kes. 36,022,140. The University paid all salaries and deductions for the year. Also included in

payables is Kes. 13.9 million Income Tax to Kenya Revenue Authority and Kes. 46.37 million for

trade payables.

Section F: Financial Probity and Serious Governance Issues

The University has no financial probity and governance issues.
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EillrEo 30 JutE,2019

REFORT ON THE FIi.IANCIAT STAIEMENTS

OrdltuODinion

I hsrc trded the aconpenyng hondd 3talenErnli oI Lalpb Uniucr,ty lrl ort on
prgct{2bq!, u,tidr 6nrp.r!aof thcGtdtmtnt o{financolpo6[ion as!l 3{l,Jum, Zotg,
strHtrcflt of hsncid pcffumance, 3taenxrt of changrao in reterws. ctttsrn€rd d cEst
,loss lnd the ltahrnc'{ o{ cortparison ol hrdgcl sn0sctual amornt! la ho yoa lhon
GndGd. srd r rrrffn ry ol rrgrrifrcat oocqrnfiE poftrc. r'rd dhcr cribnrlo.y
ntrmdiol in rccordarrce wtlr lhe provruoro o, Artd€ 249 oa lhc congtrtulnn ol lbnya
a$ soclion 35 ol fle Publrc Ardl A.( 2015. I har,e obtafied ag thc inlormaton airo
@metorlr d*rr. to lhe be.t d my tnowhdgr end bel€r, mrc nco83sary tu thc
D(rDolt or lha rdit.

ln rry ophho, crc.pl tor fie .lhd d th. m.Ers dcrcrbad h $c B.rb br Ard{hd
Oprnoo scclron ot my r:port thc frrsrcd llltcrrtnb prmsrt fEirly, h el mrbnrl
re3pecis, lhe lln.ncbl pmltin ol Leldpia Univenily ao al 30 Jurle. 20t9. .rn ol [l
hrandBl perlormme s.d it! cash llowr ir lhe yaar thso .ndcd. n eccordarp
lnlor$iond Pl$fic SoctDl Accosnlng St rderdt ( ccrud Bar6) and csnply wllh thc
Um,rirfios Act 2Ol2 end Pubtrc Finico Mnegdaril Acr. 2012.

Brrh lorQulM.d Ophhn

l. lrck olOrncohlp Oocurncrrti - Llrd

As prwionrly raporlod. property. plsnts End €qupmeot Mance o, Kshr.2.O3O.723.2O4
a: al 30.fune. 2Ol9 im.tdes m smounl of lGtB 'lSa,A3S,000 rspe*ntng thr vdrn ol
arght€en ( 181 parcels of lend nreacn r? . bial o, 9a7.9 ecree . Accordnrg to Ura owna*ql
doflobrt! prctcnbd b al(lil trdic.tirn, riftr€n (tO) pcrcalc of bnd st3 Bti[ r.gbterGd
n lhe neme ol Egenoo UoNorlty

FurthG?, tha Unnledly ras aloceEd 5 rcr.. oa bd by ltrc dc{und l*mrcrpd Cqrrcil ol
i{trhutru,l00.cns by tho dofund Tan C;oud d Rurnrrut errtt 6(Xl acrc! !, [E
dcfrrtd Cornt, Gooir, ol Srrtrru. tltrrNBvor! ff'rerthp &omt€nb for lhe ltrtue F Eab
ol lfird trr$e not been obldned. Ilse peroeb ol Ed rneasuhg 708 acrc andwtroc.

Ittwr t/t,r, Adiw-r.kwol q laiqrt ltxntt b * tw c*d )o lw :Ol9

r-..1
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valu8A hava not b€€n d€t€lmsred have nol b€€n lndud€d in ths frngncial StEiements fo,
lh€ ycat endcd 30 Jtrr€, 2Ol9

2- Rocoivrblor rrgm Erchanga Trenrctlonc

As prevao$ty (oporled. tho ttalomoill or lrnancrat pocrlion rolbcts rcocarablca ksrr
excharlge traraBactons bolanoo Of KatrS.2O'!.852.859 whrch rs nct o'l pforrBon lol bad and
doubtfui debt. arrtountirg lo Krhs-22.428.005 as discloood m Noto 22(i, ro tho tinancial
slalcrnont3. Tho provision appearcd .nad€qualo sinca d6tts amounlitE lo
Kshs 143.567.OE1 releting to Unoolbclsd ro\ronrrG lrorn cloqod down collsboratmg
cpllOOOS havo remarned oulBtanding for cooEiJqrebh a period of lime. No axplanation
wai pro{tfu on hory thc r€\,€nuB will ba coll€ctGd ,rom the closad cEmp.JE€3-

Further, included in llE rsc€ivBbhs balance ia an amount ot lGhT.2.25t,Ol2 .elalang lo
orr€rpEld Psy As You Eam (PAYE) tar ovurng'fronr Ktnya Rerrenue Aulhorlty (KRA) in
respoci of deduclio{rs ,ro.n ledurets ior coll-sponsored progt8mrn3. No docrrnentary
evrdence has beeo provrded to choe, acloo{,ledgemeot ol orretprynenl3 by O|€ Autho.fiy
or dEims lbr tfie amounl

ln tho crrcumslatEBa. tho valirtly eod to€rr€tablHy ot the ,€ooivabl€s trorn orcftarEs
lran6acilor!3 o{ t(sh8.201.852.E59 as at 30 June, 2O1o couH bo confrrm€d.

3. lrrcguler GepltellsrLon of Exponset

As dcclorod undsr ltlots 24 to tho ltnsncial statem€nB. the stat€merlt ol financial poGltron
rellercls an anrounl of 1(.6hs.2.O30,723.2U urder properly. plant and oquiptncnt which
conatihrtea e ryDrk-in-progrees belancc ol Kshe-1.085.359.594 in r66poc't o, YE.ioua
prc{ecfs o{ the Uniwrrrty Ths belance ncJudes an amount of K6}rs.t8-5E4.57t t^,hich
rsljle's to ponatiee for late peymonts lo co.rtraclorE' invoices for certified rrorks. Ths
p€naltbs *sre wrangty cap,rteliz€d tnrder vYort-in+rogre€s' insload of b€iarg caplurod
under r€c(rrgnt €rp€rtditute. Thrs t]ealrTGnf has tfis elt€ct of dvsrstaung surplus and Ulo
valua of ltre etselg urfiile underglsting lhe exp€]tras durilg the y€a(.

ln lhc abaonco of proper adiustmGnt ol tho ,inancial alalcmorils. tho accrrrocy ol U'|c

Etatom(,nl Of fnarxral perfrmence afd lho atat€manl o{ fnancial poiitio.l COI,H nol bo
conftrmsd.

Tho audtt yra6 condu.led |n acco(dEnco w|th lBlsrnalronal Slandards of Sr8rorno Audfl
lnctitulio.tB (lSSAtB). I am rndapendent ot lhe Le*rpta UnIYE,SIV Manag€msfit in
accordanca wilh ISSAJI t3O on Cod€ ot EttEcs I havE fulfrlled olh€r othical r€fponabihurs
!.t sccofdgnca with lhe ISSAI and in accordance wilh oth€{ €thtcel lequit€msots
apptic8ble to p€dorring audits ot frnanctal stelgrn€nla rn Kenya I b€lst€ lhat th6 eud,l
svdenc€ I hat€ ol}tatned ts 8uf6o€nl 8nd appropriats to pro,vide a baEis lo{ nry qualifiod
oprnxrn.

,L.riE, .,1 ,6d .ls.l&, 1i.6^, d ,n I rta4{u a 4n'r,4 ,(u t/h' tr d rith'J lt Jni'. -'l.lY
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Emphub of llrl:tar

tlltorhl Uncerrrinty ln Rohdon to Srrtrlnrblilty o, Sorylco

Dunng lhe year under revisnr. lhe university's reaordect a surplus of K*hs 63,3{4,6g3
(?0't8: Ksle.27.m5,Z4t) thcre0y reducin0 rhe accumuleteO Ociha to Kshr.tS7,gZE.gS7
a3 al 30 Juric. 2019 (2018: Ksha.224,oz7:s6g) Although th€ un-iuartity is on a rEgoyery
rejecrory Binos 201{12015 linencial yEar, the cur€nt lisihitss balance d
l(shs.42{.738,fi9 exceeded the cunent assere ot Kshs 3tg,Oga,t0g re*ultirrg to a
negalive utorking capitrl o{ KshB.t0s,Bls.B41 Thc ftnenaal poaitirn tg an indicetbn ol
lh6 cristenoo o, a matonal unerlainty which may cast ailnificsnt doubt on lhe
Univetsityb abihy to suelain its eervices ard meel its obligations ag and wtren lhey lall
due. Tha frnancisl slale'menB ht'rc been pregared oo Jgro"rg ooooern basB oo lhc
assurnptioo thsl lhe unieeB.ty ffll conlrnuo to rtcci'ro linancrat ilpport lrom lho
Gorrcrnrnent and crodilorr_

My opinioo is nol modtrtod base,ct on thc Glrects ol lhis maller.

Key Audlt [tlettarr

Key Eudrt matters sre lhose mate'3 that. n my professionat pdgmenl. are of ,noit
signifrcance io the orrdil of the linenoat itslemenB. Thorc aro n; koy audil maltGrs m
lhe }tar undor rcyE,rv.

REFORT ON I.AWFULNESS AND
RESOURCES

EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBIIC

Conclutlon

As required by Arttle 229(6) g{ the conrlitution. basfd on lhe audil prooedurer
perfomed. ercop{ lot lhc mators do$crDod ln lhc 8a$s lor Conclu&on oo tew{ulnoes
eod Efl€clivcnott rn Use of Pubfrc r€tourffis scctioftB of nry report I contirm that, nothing
eho has oonre to my attantim to cau66 fire to bcher€ lhal public resmrrces haw not been
Epplied lawfutly and in en efieclive way.

B*lr for Goncluslon

t- tlehy ln lmplamentedon of Profacle

1.1, Conruuctlon of Bulldtnga

As tgnodad in lhe previous year, included in the property. planl and equilmenl belance
of ]Ghs.2.030.7?3.ru fis ar 30 June. 2019 e vrork-ir-progregs'emouoting to
Ksm 1.046.763,705 reletrng to oonstruct€o ol the unrversrty:s gate, tecture lheitre.
hbraty, sdmlftslration bloct and scicficc hboratory Phyticet''rurihcaliofi and rcrrxlw ot
relevanl t€cordg revealed that projec{snor$r Kehs-30{.462.138 had been compleled and
in uge but nol y€t ca-pil8lized due to lack of oomplelbn oerlilicaEB. Further. other prtriacts
amounlins lo l$hs 741.460,567 hod lakeo too long to complele with rcme sponning ouer
c{ht }rars. and lho mntrrct pcnod hed hp36d rhc unh66rty ellribules tho oauy to

Ar.l^(rt al.rrl*,f Ulrtu-{i.Frrlo /"u*qrv I'aron lr t'rr rtrr rr,i.r/ JO Jx4d .'trr,,

l ision: .1 I tDtrrr\tt\. lt)r lirlu*l l'ntnsfiruttrtn,tl.*t-tLtt
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nm.perroftnancaOnlhe pefl olthc confactofs detpttc sub3tettlel payments hsung be€n
made.

Furlher, oxaminiilit fi ol records irdicales lhat lhe conlraclo.s ffire p8itj eroes{, gmOUnlS

to{alling lo t(s18.130,170.434. Although the Managernenl cr0lained lhat the oxce}t
payilent8 wert rn reepcct ol rrariatbns of conttscts. ooGultancy on otcMagture dslgna.
machanical & eledtilal torks arrd ollrcr Simrlfl technEal wort$ *'hdl tYorB Oonl|mcd n
3ep8r8te oootrscB. the ffi8efion $as nol supoorled by any docurmnlelltrll. Thc
,nsn genronl hei nol glt,cn CYidOrcc o{ l}rc stopr it ha$ tik6n to csnPbte th€ p.ojecls

oiv€n lhrt lhc cont acts portod iurd lapsod

lo lhe scrrmslrncs. the valire lor money oo tlu expendrture of Ksfr.130.l70.tl3l oould
not bc confomed.

1,2. tlevelopmentolsn Eobmra.o Rooourco Phnnltrg IERP) Softwerc

As prwnuty reporled, the Unoerrrty eotered tnlo a @nlrsol 'r,{h e consuhmg lttm, Wotld
Syslern lrnited. to clevelop ao En:orDrlte Retouroo Pbnnrng (ERP) tofiwalo al a coEl ot
tclrs,la.g(9.200. Ihe Unrwrsrty ped Kilt 9.329-200 rn ?01X/4014 ftneocrel year whEh
wa3 62% ol tho contraal surn and an ddilronal Krhr.El.0fr) tn lho 2016/il0l7 ftnancial
ycar. Ihc impbmonlaliofl p€Ikld tYss to run betwesn2,May.2O12to?1l May. 2013 but
tho pKriocl rvat yst lo b€ fully implennnled er years afisf th€ lrplemerIalirn perio<l had
taOrOO, and remained incqrplele. Amording to lhe signed conlract dodJments. the
projoa vra to have fivs (5) dermlopers vrorking oo t re syElem but only two (2) nete
appoinled by lh€ con8ulBnt.

Furllrer. available informatron andicEtes trst the University is in lhe proce3t o{terminrting
lhe contrEcl and a p.ocutemeot procera lOr a nec/ ERP Sofrif,Arc hAE oootrmcnced.
imptpng that the old sort$sre rril nol be useful upon cofirnEs&nng o{ a nsw one.

ln the CrqrmStanc!*. tmplennnlafton of the ERP soritvars as unosnah ard il i5 doubdul
whe{hor the Uniwrsity wrll oblain vahm-for-monsy oo tha expenditure of Krhs.e,413,2{X}
rc far incurred in retpec't of lhe ERP solhY8re.

The andrl waE eondu@d in accordanoe wrth ISSAI 4o(xl. The stEtrdard fequires thsl I

comply yrilh ethir:al requiremente and plan and perlorm the audl to obtain assutDlrce
Bbout r$ether tlra sctivitiss. fin8nosl transadions End 6fonnalhn rellec{ed in the
financial statem€nl3 are in complrarrce, in all mstenal ,e$pect3, with llre autho,iti€ lhsl
govem llrem ! belEve thal the gulil efldence I hat e oDl0in€d t3 srrtto€nt and appropriate
to prq,|de a hasis lor my co.rclullon

REPORT ON EFFECTTT/ENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS. RISK fuIAI'IAGEMENT

AT.ID GO\/ERNANCE

Conclll3lon

As reqlired
proedures

by Seclion 7(t[s) o{ tha Public Audit Acr, 2015, beE€d m lhe audit
performed. €rcegt for lh€ rnstterE deecribed in the Basb for Conclusron on

ltrn r, .'l t-\,1&ir.t4i.l.?J ur I ol4r,t l.hn.rrr^ l'. rl, )nn .6/f J l0Jst, :Al9
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L"ev,ft,.lna8s and Efiectivene€,s in Use of Pubtic Resouroes s,eclion of rry regort. I conftrm
lhal. nothlng elsc hasoorn6 to my attonlEn lo ceus6 mE to b€hcvs lhai mtemal @rlhoG,
risl( mgnBgern€nt and overal gqrngmance lrere not €trecliye

Baris for Concluelon

Worknoersc in Peyroll Henegement Syrtcm
A revh,wof tte University's Enterprise Regource plannhg (ERp) and euck pay Data for
lhe managemenl of payroE thr-olg! ulc ay$Gm 

'n 
pta-cc tor'managormnt lt peyrott

raesalcd ledr ol segregatirn of duties thus comprunising the inudity qt dsta in lhe
sysiem. The iest rc,realed that lhe AdminBtralo( rrser grouo ln UnidIs ian oonrpleto ail
lhe tlcgs frorn dal,a crpturo (dtla €fitry) lo payroll priuaton rhe aistam mcririty arx
data ifit€grlly sre there,bre oornpranrised end unreliable

ln the citqltrEtances, it ig nol pos,csle to confirm lhe efeclireness of lha payroll
managernenl syrtems 0. rrhsore, stfong conlrol mGarurcs har/g DaGn pul in plsce

The arrd( wa3 condtrcled an ac.ord.ene wilh ISSAI 2315 aort |SSAI 2330. Tho rtandrrds
roquirc lhrl I pran ild p€r{orm the audit lo otlain aasuranca aboul wtrether prooees6E
end syeteme of inlemal control, risk menagrernent and overalt goeernanoe $Bre op€rating
etredively' an ,u melcrlal rcspcc{i- I bel[vo thet tha audit eiidenoa ! het€ obtiin€d as
aurficisnl €rtd appropriele lo provide s hasis for nry condusion

Rorpontlblllfiec of [enegement and tre Councit iiemberu

Management ia rotporrsible tor lho pr€paralion and feir praaantelion ol th€Eo tin8nciel
staternents in eccordane wilh lntemalionrl Pr6lrc SectorAoounting Standords (Accrual
Barir) aod for mahlarniog €fiesri'/o internsl conlrol es Manageirent dctermlnor ir
neoa&8ary t0 cneblo the preparstim of financial slatemenls thal ars lrea frfin mal€rial
miEglelernent. rrrhather dug to ftsrrd or €rror and for its agseggmeot of the affeqliveness
of inlemal conlrol, risk manageorent and otrsrall govoananoe

lq qrup"tittg lho fna,rcitl ilEtcments, Management is responrible for as'ersing he rballv
of lhc uni\ltrBily lo cmtinus a goirE enoem. orsclcing, as appli€bie, nrauars ,Blat€d
lo going concem and udng the applicable basis of aocotinrirg iriesr l}re managemenl is
aurare of lhe intentrcn to liqultlate thc Unnrursrty or cceto opcratiraa.

Manage(n€nl ls stso ,E*ponsible lor the submhs|on oI the financiat stalcmcnts lo the
At ditor€G{roral in accorden€ rnlh thc prorri8Dnr of Scdron 47 o{ lhG prrblic Arrdrt Act.
2015.

ln addilirn to the reeponsibilily for the preparation End pre€€ntation of lhe financiat
slotemonB dcacribGd ebow, Managomcol E also reEoonible for ontuoryg thet the
activiths. ftnillcial lralBectimt and infonrution railested in lh6 fmancial slalomonts are
in orplienca with the aulho.itieg wfrictr gorem lhern, and lhel publrc rgBorrrcas arr
appliorl rn an eflcdrve way.

The Univerrity Cowrcit E .esfoniDle ror or.e€eetng lhe Unv€r3nyl financial ,eporung
Fro6ta. rsrriswilg lho elIectirrcneBE of how lho unnm'Erty monitors co.nplienoc wilh

lltTxtt o{thc .lti*r"(;iwol ra !.u!tti\t l:ffi\rrt4t ftr rlh. rc,r o4.JJtlJrar. flile
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telgrrent bgblatrw and rogukrtory roqutr6monl8. snaunng that e{lec{re ptoceEE€a snd
EystE'lE ar€ in plaqB to adclreer key roles and ,e3poosibililiet in relatbn to golGrnance
and rBt manag6{nont, atd end|lrrrg lha adaquacy and sltEtlir,gness of lhe control
eflvironment.

Auditor6enerrlt ReoponrlblllUot for tlre Audit

The ardrt oDjectrtJes a,e to ob{ain rea3onable a3surance sbout whethcr tho ttnancral
stitGrteotB a3 a whola atc laoo from matorial mi6stalefil€nt, wh€th€r dus to lraud or enoc.
and to lBsue an auditor's repo( lhal includ$ my opmioo in accordstrce wth ltre provisions
o{ Sectim 48 of tho Prrblrc Au<lil Act. 2OtS and Eubmrt tho eudlt rcport in oornpliantr rYith

Artrcb 220(71 ol tha C,ongtitutim. Reasonable assurance is a high !eve{ qf ascuranoe. bul
i6 rrct a gusrantee that an nudil cofiduct€d an accordanoo vrrlh ISSAh will ahrays delect
a melGtial m6statGm€il and wratnecs ryhen it €xr6lE. Miaetatemenls can arisa lrcrn fraud
or €ro{ End are coneidere<l maEnal if. tndivrdually or tn lhe ag0togela, lhay could
reaSonably bc oxpoctGd to inlhrenco lh€ €conom$ dociBion6 o{ ucarE l8kan on lh€ basis
ol thesp linandgl tlaEmenls.

ln addilirn tro tha ardil of th€ financrEl slatemenls- I cotnpliance audil |s plannod and
performed to ele{€93 a oonclus.on ebout whether. in ell maloflal resgocls, lhs actrvdiBs.
ftnanosl lranEEclions End infomrEtion relleCled in lhe linanci8l ElslefilenlS ore in
cornphane with the authoritie3 that govstn thom eod lhal publE ro3flrco3 aro epolEd m
an d{crliw wey, m accordane with the prorisbne ot Article 220(6) of thc Constrtution
and submil the sudil reporl in comptiance wiln Article ?29(7) of the Coostitution

Furth,er, an planning end performing the sudit oJ lhe fnancial slatements sno audt o{
comgliancr, I oonsidor intofiral cont ol in order lo givt an assuranct on lhe Gffc.tivan€Es
o, ird€mal oonbob, riek managemenl and govern8]rce prooesse5 end 3lElems h
accordanca wilh th€ grfli3hnt ol Sedion 7( I Xa) ol lho Puollc Ardtt Ad. 20 | 5 8nd srrb{rril
lho rJdit ,cAo.t ,r oomghane wilh Ailrcrs 229{?l ol tha Conelrtutirn. My concileatirn ol
lho inlemal ontrol nould nol n€ces$rly d6clo€€ all malte't ln the intemal cofilrgl lhal
might be mal€lfial srgAtocrs8o3 undot lho lSSAlS. A mat'Bnel !rrcekn633 .S a coodlttoa In

wtrhh lhc d$ign or operaton ol one or mor€ ol the rniemal @nltol co.nponantE doe6 nol
reduce to a rcldively ls'r lerel thE rick lhat mb$taterEnls caused by etror o( ftaud in
amountt thel uroul, be nralsnal ln rslaton lo th€ tansncial $tatEmanlr beng audilod may
occur and rrcl be detected within a timely period by employees in the normat Courte ol
performing their ass{rt€d fundion3

Eecauc€ o, itt uttl€renl lrmtolron$. rnlernal control mBy not prev€nt or det€cl
mls8trtonEntB and n6tanc€G ol non oonrplbno8- Also, proiEdions O{ eny €Yaluation ot
eflecti,/€ne€.s b ,ulure Perbdt are 3ubFct to the .isk lhal conlrols may become
mad$quato bOcause of chang€g m conditklng. o. that thB dogrse of Compllerloo virth th.
Univarsity'a policies and procedu.es may deGriorat€.

AB part Ot an audil oonduct€d rn accordancs unth lSSAls. I exercrte ploreEBional

ludgemeol and maintsin professional sk€ptrcism lhrotqhoul the audit, I alro:

8.hit 4 t$'-lvritut -litwol ra ltttlrrrlri I'n rt''rs lr ,4t tEd dr\'J lt Jttt,', :vl9

Paee I 48

l'ision: .1 I ltttr'r't\Il.r .fot I ulttLtl I rut*ltttttttrut rt/ \rt,tttv



Laiftivia 't) ilrt crit1, flanua t Rn ort c{, Qinarciil Statcnm*for tfic tcar Eadef, 3N lunc 2019

o ldenltly 8nd t3!et3 lhc risks of rnote(ial mi3italemcnt of tfro frnarxiet atetamenlB,flh€ther due tO fteud. or €no., d€Ergn and perform auUA predures recaocrsiue lothos€ risk3, and o,btsin audit eviden& that tr ruflicient ani appropriats io provicro ab6sis for my opinon, Tlre ri$k ot not.dotocrmg a mflonsl mrsstalgmenl .€sutting frornlraud is highor tran lor orp re*t[i]rg frorn error, al freud may inrrqlve coflr,rgion.forgery, int€ntionEl trnis3ions misrcpresentalbng, ot trre sverrrdc ot inlcrn.el co.rtrol.

' Evalutlo the apProp'retoness of eccounting policie3 us€d and th€ r€aso.|Eblenerg ofaccounting estimaDeB and related di3crotures made by the Monagenrent
r cooclude on lho eppropriaton€ss of the Menag€m€nfs use of the appticable bagigot eccounting and, bBs€d on the arrdrr evi<rLoce oblained. wtretirir a mrten lunoErlainty oxi8t3 rclated to cuefr!* o, conditon3 thet may ca3t 3ionifEent doubl onlhe rbllaly o, L.ikipie Uniwrsity to contmuo aB a groirE conoem. tfl oonctude that amalerial uncertEanty axists, I am requred lo drgnr anenlbn in the auddors,oDort torhe .cfated disaro3urea an rh€ ,anencrat slatomonB or. ir cucft diBclocurea a(€inrdcqurlo, to modily my oginltrr. My condusions are bssed on ttle audir svid€rre

oblarned up to the dEle of nry audit r€port. Ho*€yer, futurc €vents or co.r6iborl& may
caus€ the Univecity lo oealtc to co.rllnue ac a golng cofrcorn

' Eveluale lhe ovErall pteg€ntation. 3tructure and contenl o, the linr.lctal slatgrnenls.inc{uding the dbdosure*, rtd ryhcther lfie frraocial st tGrrrDntS ,op.or6nt lhcund€rtyin9 lransrctions ead a@nts in e mannor lhrl schio',gB lair prerdnution.
. oblBin sufli.-nt apprgpriate Errdil svaden.e regarding the financial iefomation andbuBliEs3 activiries ot rhe Laiktpia unir eerty to exprcrs an oplnron oo rho tinrncial

StAtonlDnl3.

o Pnrfomr Bucfi orher prodrrrBr a3 r @n3irer nsoerrary in rhe drct'nitancos.
I @mmunlcale wrlh lhe ManagEfrEnl regarding, smElg olh€r mafieB. rhe planrEd scope
End lining of th,c ltdil and aignilicafl! auait nnaingr, induoirrg any dgnific.nrndefrcienciar
in internal conlrol thal are rcte{lltied durng tfrc auOa

I abo provue ManaCerno.rt whh t slatornant ttrat ! havg cornpltod with rolovant othlcat.oquircrnctrts ,ogardlng andGprfidanoe. and to cofiimunicEle wilh th€m ell rBlarorBhipB
and othar maltsrB thal may i€asonEbly b€ thought lo bear on my indep€ndene. and
w?rere applica,bl,a. rciEtcd ralcguardr

N.rrobl

30 Aprll. 202'l

a+ lorlrr*r t lrrcsra.rliu tlt |rn ..,nkJ lO hd :./1!
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE,2019

20r8n0l9
(30.06.20r9)

Kcs.

2017t2018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.

Percenta
ge

Change
o/o

REVENUE Notes Page

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

Govemment Grants ( Recurrent) 3

Grants & Donations 4

Sub-Total

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Students'Fees 5

Other Miscellaneous Incomes 6

SuLTotal
Total Revenue

68

69

70

7t

EXPENDITURE
StaffCosts

Administrative Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses

Contracted Services

Academic & Research Expenses

Students Welfare Expenses

Council Expenses

Finance Charge

Depreciation

Provision for Bad Debs

Loss on Disposal/De-recognition

Total Expenditure

Operating SurpluV(Deficit)
Other Senice Units

Farm Profit/(Loss)

Catering Profit/(toss)

Bookshop/Medical Profi t/(lnss)
Total Other Service Units

,|

8

9

l0
ll
t2
l3
t4
l5
l6
t7

861,921,103

323,830

862,244,932

792,297,868

0

192,297,868

8.8Y"

8.8%

0.4o/o

400.9%

9.5"
9.0o/"

-5'7.4'/,

-534.8o/o

-100.0%

6.60/,

344,780,879

40,222,388

385,003"267

1,2/7248,200

343,558,893

8,029,124

351,5E8,617

I,143,886,4E5

72 879,832,268

74 73,922,463

75 7,595,057

75 2,667,&4

76 t8lp8\677
77 14,096,133

77 9,522,411

780
78 14,933,740

78 (2,490,052)

79 1,492,763

1.1&1,655,105

54,593,095

869,181,221

57,672,803

12,261,t32

6,088,994

130,807,528

9,438,105

11,221,762

t,092,097

14,732,170

2,294,816

0

1,114,790,629

29,095,856

l.2Yo

28.2o/o

-38.lYo

-56.2o/o

38.40

49.4%

-l5.lo/o

-100.0%

l.4o/o

-208j%

6.lo/"
122.0o/"

l8
l9
20

80

80

80

(744,707)

(503,705)

0

(1248,412)

(1,746,t87)

I 15,844

459,728

(1,170,615)

Total Surplus(Deficit) 63344683 27,923,241 126.80/o

Paee I 50
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT30rE JUNE,2019

DETAII,s
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Notes Page

2t 8l
22(i) 82

22(ii) 82

23 83

2018120t9
(30.05.20r9)

Kes.

201712018 o/o

(30.06.2018) Change

Kes.

Non- Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Library Books

Intangible Assets (ERP Software)

Biological Assets

Total Non- Current Assets

Totsl A$ets
LIABILITIES
Current Liebilities

Overdrawn Cash Books

Accounts Payables

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

Total Non- Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Financed By:

Capital Reserve

Revenue Reserves (SurpluV(Defi cit))
Revaluation Reserve

Totrl

24

25

26

27

28 88

29 (i) 89

29(ii) 89

.S:
CPA Geofrey K. langat

ICPAKNo.4980
As. FINANCE OFFICER

1,526,6t2,088 1.4%

(224,027,s63) -29.s%

0**
lJ02tE4l,t4 5Lr%

84

86

87

88

22,292,8N

20 r,852,859

77269,s49

17,676,910

319,W22W

2,030,723W

8,782,3$

l5,t2s,7w
5,624,5W

2,06,.255fi0
23793$,nE

85,M6,132

224,576,709

0

13,757,091

323,379,932

1,420,175,978

93,538

10,t63,220

6,03 t,100

1,436,463,&16

1,759,843,767

-73.8%

-10.1%

28.5%

-1.3o/"

43.0%

9289.0%

48.8%

4.7%

43.4o/o

35.20h

6,861,147

417,876,902

424J3E,049

0

0

4U.7*.M9

r.19.(02,210

8l 1,959

456.447.284

457,259,243

745.0%

-8.5%

-7.1o/"

0

0

457259243

r.r02$r.fl{
-7.1o/o

flJ%

1,547,752,095

(1s7,E18,9s7)

s64,736,792

lsL6!gru

ci-Jr.o o-g-
Dr. Ken\Nyaundi, PhD.
CHAIRMAN OF COTINCIL

/r{m-'/ €--
Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD.
VICE CHANCELLOR

Page | 5l
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STATEMENT OFCHANGES IN RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE,2019

2017t20t8

Detsils

As at lst July, 2017

Govemment Development Crants
Revaluation during the
yearlAdjustment

Funds used during the year

Total Surplus/(Defi cit)

As {t 30th June, 2018

2018t2019

Detrils

As at lst July, 2018

Govemment Development Grants

Revaluation Cain during the year

Excess Depreciation on Revaluation

Funds used during the year

Total SurpluV(Deficit)

As st 30th June, 2019

00
00
0 27,925,241

1,526,612,088 (224,027,5631

Capital Revenue Revaluation
Reserrye Reserve Reserve

Kes. Kes. Kes.

1.526,612,088 (224,027,563) o

21,t40,N7 0 0

0 0 567,540,'.716

0 2,803,924 (2,803,924)

000
0 63.344.683 0

1,547,752$95 (157,878,957) 564,736,792

Capital
Reserve

Kes.

t,525,212,088

l,400,000

Revenue
Reserve

Kes.

(2s r,952,804)

0

Reveluation
Reserve

Kes.

0

0

Total
Reserves

Kes.

1,273,259,283

1,400,000

00
00
0 27.925.241

0 1,302,584,524

Total
Reserves

Kes.

t.302.584,524

21,t40,007

567,540,716

0

0

63,344,683

1,954,609,930

l'ision: -.1 I rtrvcrtttr htr I oluel I rottsltrnuttttt ,tl \tttrLrt
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 301u JUNE,2019

Details

Operating Activities:

Surplus/Deficit

Gain on Disposal of Assets

Adj ustment for Depreciation

Operating surplus before working capital changes

Changes in Working Capitat
Increase/Decrease in Receivables

Increase/Decrease in Inventories

Increase/Decrease in Payables

Increase/Decrease in Biological Assets

Net chatrges in Working Capital

Net cash generated from operating Activities
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Non-Current Assets

Work in Progress

Proceeds from sale ofNon-Current Assets

Net cash used in investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Govemment Development Grants

Proceeds from Long Term Liabilities

Repayments of Long Term borrowings

Net cash generated from Financing Activities
Increase(decrease) in cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning ofthe Year

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the period

Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement

ADD: Overdrawn Cash Books

Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet

(s6Js8,e80)

21,140,N7 1,400,000

Notes Page

30 (i) e0

30 (ii) e0

30 (iii) e0

30 (iv) e0

20tEt20t9
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

63,344,683

1,492,763

14,933,740

79,771,196

(s4,s4s,699)

(3,919,819)

(38,570,382)

406,600

(96,629,300)

(16158,rr4)

2017t2018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.

27,925,241

14,732,170

42,657,41r

129,514,193

2,594,957

(117,s82,020)

( 1,1 84,1 00)

13,343,030

56,000,441

3l
32

90

91

(34,527,933)

(38,s9s,889)

39,500

(73{U,322t

21,140,007
(r8,8A,429)

u,234,173

15,43I.743

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

15.431.743

6,861,147

22,292,890

(6,419,s96)

(49,939,38s)

(2,s33,332)

(1,133,332)

( 1,491,871)

85,726,043

84,234,173

2017t20t8
(30.06.2018)

Kes.

84,234,173

8l 1,959

85,046,132

llision: .1 ltntv'rtttr litr lilttrl ljtrntLttnutttn ,i ,\,r rLtt.

53



Lai$pia Untuersit1, AnnuatQ,gport {,Finatciatsutemenufor tfu tearEnlc[ 3N lunc 2019

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3l)TH JUNE,2OI9

Acturl on
Comprrrblc

BrrlsApproYed
Budgct

20ltn0t9
Kcs.

800,664,851

2,500,000

547,677 A0o

24,378,000

r37s,220ast

Vircltlent
(Adjustmm$)

2018n019
Kcr,

(16,013,297\

(2,210,000)

(121,812,400)

11,004,257

(129,031,440)

Rcviscd
Budgct

201812019

Kcs.

784,651,554

290,000

425,865,000

35,382,257

r,246,188,811

201&2019

KG3,

861,921,103

323,830

344,780,879

40,222,388

r247,24820D

Pcrformrnce
Dilfcrencc
2018/2019

Kcs.

77,269,549

33,830

(81,084, l2 I )

4,840,131

1,059189

DETAII^S
REVENUE

Governm€nt Grants ( Recuneot)

Grants & Donations

Students'Fees

Other Incomes

Totrl
EXPENDITURE

StaffCosts

Admrnistrative Exp€nses

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses

Contracled Services

Academic & Research Expenses

Students Welfare

Council Expenses

Finance Charge

Depreciation

Provision for Bad Debts

Loss on DisposaY De-recognition

Totsl

Opereting Dcficit

Othcr Scrvlcc Units

Fsnn Profit

Catering Profit/Loss

Boolshop Profit

Tot.l Surplus(Dcficit)

ADD: Other Rcccipa fion P&L)

Government Gronts ( Capital)

Receipts from Debtors

Deficit Financing- Bank Loan

LESS: Other PsyDenB (Non P&L)

Plant & Equipment

Capital Dcvelopment

Debt Management

Surplus(Dcticit) for thc Ycrr

984,257,828

77,03s,950

7,156,000

6,733,000

170,210,995

14,125,920

I t,000,000

2,000,000

26,000,000

6,500,000

0

rJ010r9,594

70,200,557

(99,604,258)

(3,271,5e7)

(625,000)

(2,433,000)

(9,227,247)

4,019,501

0

(2,000,000)

0

0

0

(il3,14r,601)

(15,88e,839)

884.653,570

73,7U,353

6,531,000

4,300,000

160,983,748

I 8,145,421

I 1,000,000

0

26,000,000

6,500,000

0

I,191,87E,0,93

54310,718

879,832268

73,922,463

7,595,057

2,667,644

181,082,677

14,09(',133

9,522,411

0

14,933,740

(2.490,052)

1,492,763

I,182,655,105

64,593,(D5

4,82t,303

(158,1 l0)
( r,064,0s7)

1,632,356

(20,098,929)

4,M9,288

1,477,589

0

I 1,066,260

8,990,052

0,4n,763)
e222,98

(r,l63,see)

0

0

0

0

2,800,000

0

(13,089,83e)

(209,084,094)

(141,261,825)

(150,000,000)

(smr4s,919)

0

2,800,000

0

57,110,718

78,051,238

58,238,175

0

136189,4r3

(744,707)

(503,70s)

0

53r44,68:i

(744,707)

(3,303,705)

0

(12,2r2,011)70r00,ss7

287,135,332

199,500,000

150,000,000

635,6,5132

21,140,007

2t,sosA33

0

42,643,U0

(56,91 1,23r)

(36,732,742)

0

(93,643,e73)

6t,030,000

440,135,332

241,670,557

742,835,tt9

(36,000,000)

(4,926,328)

(3s7,985.084)

(150,s24,346)

(513,43s,7s8)

0

56,103,612 29,565,453

82,t50,248 38,595,889

91,146,211 162,851,382

229,40,t31 23t,012324
(36,000,000) (12s,022,601)

26,538,219

43,554,359

(71.705,171)

(1,512,s93)

(89,022,602)

l'ision : .,1 | liltvrstt\' ltr' l'!l ucll lirut-\lt )r|td t krt ! tl S(x'tf l.\
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Laihipia Universitl'

NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30rH JUNE,2019

l. Statement of Compliance 8nd Basis of preparation

The entity's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with
lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual. The financial statements

are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the
University. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cos! unless stated

otherwise. The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. The financial
statements are prepared on accrual basis.

2. Summary of Signilicant Accounting poticies

s. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
services in the ordinary course ofthe University's activities. Revenue is shown net ofrebates
and discounts.

The University recogrizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the University and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the University's activities as described below. The University bases

its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics ofeach arangement.

Revenue has been accounted for using the accrual concept ofaccounting. Income is recognized
in the period in which it is eamed. The revenue recogrition is as folrows:

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions
.!. Government Grants

Government grants are recognized as income in the period when received. Accrued
Government grant is recognized only when there is a reasonable assurance that the entitv will
comply with any condition attached to the grant and that the grant will be received

.:. Grants & Donations

Grants and donations in form of research grants and donations from constituency
Development Funds (CDFs) are recognized as income in the period it is received. The entity
does not acque un-received grants and donations unless there is a reasonable assurance to
receive the funds.

l'ision: 1 | 'ntvrrrtr /ir liluL,l I rut\t)rDtutthilt ti.\\ tL,tr
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Lai$pia 'Unfuersi4, AnnufRwort 4 Financiat Statenents fol tfu {ear lEnte[ 3Ufi lunt 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June, 2019

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

.1. Tuition and Fees

Revenue from tuition and fees are recogrized prorata over the relevant period. The entity

applies accrual concept in relation to tuition and fees receivable in a particular year. Revenue

from tuition fees are accounted for over the period in which they relate. Fees paid in advance

are carried forward under trade and other payables.

.1. Other incomes

Revenues from olher sources are recognized when the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably. lncome from campuses is treated the same way tuition and fees are treated.

b. Budget Information

The annual budget is prepared on cash basis while the actual have been prepared on accrual

basis. This explains the huge variances on the statement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts.

During the yeztr under review, there were performance diflerences between the actual and

budgeted amounts. These variances are explained as follows:

i. Govemment Grants (Recurrent) - The variance of Kes.77,269,549 was as a result of

additional government capitation during the supplementary II budget for 2018/2019.

ii. Students Fees-The variance on the students' fees was as a result of low intake of first

year students during the Year.

iii. Other lncomes - The University reported a positive variance of Kes. 4,847,681 as a

result ofinsurance claim amounting to Kes. 14,l 15,500 received in the third quarter of

the financial year.

iv. Staff Costs - The University had planned to employ new academic staff to meet CUE

requirements but this was not possible due to shortage of funds.

v. Academic & Research Expenses - The variance on this expenditure was majorly due to

more part-time teaching claims for prior period than had been anticipated during

budgeting. The University had been recognizing part time teaching costs upon claim

but we have changed this method to a consolidated list per semester as a result of

challenges from the previous method.

l'isiotr: I I intrchttt lt)r liltral lruttslttnntttt'n rtl \ttrLtt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30m June,20l9

vi. Council Expenses - The University council did not exhaust their budget. Included in

Council budget was Kes. 1,200,000 for University Chancellor but the position has been

vacant since April 2018.

vii. Finance Charge - The Univenity does not have any outstanding long term loan to incur

interest expenses at the moment.

viii. Depreciation - The University depreciation policy is to assigrr full year depreciation on

University asset. The University had budgeted a higher figure of depreciation in

anticipation of increase in assets on purchases, but this was affected by unavailability of
funds.

ix. Bad Debts Provision - The University Policy is to make a general provision of 10% on

all receivables. The change in provision for bad & doubtful debs decreased by Kes.

2,490,052 as a result of decrease in receivables leading to a performance dillerence of
Kes. 8,990,052.

x. Govemment Grants (capital) - The University revised its capital budget from Kes.

287.1 Million to Kes. 78.1 Million after the govemment reduced our budget during

supplementary budgets for ongoing capital projects. However, we only got Kes.

21,140,007 giving a variance of Kes. 56,911,231.

xi' Receipts from Debtors - The University did not receive the anticipated receipts

especially from students' fee balances. We are in the process ofcleaning up the data to

report the correct balances.

xii. Purchase ofPlant & Equipment - The University did not achieve the targeted purchase

ofadditional assets due to shortage offunds.

xiii. Capital Development- The University incurred an expendihre of Kes. 38.6 Million on

capital projects though the budget was Kes. 82.2 Million. This was as a result of delay

by contractors on the projects and therefore there were no certificates to claim from the

Ministry of Education.

xiv. Debt Management - included in debt management was Kes. 65.7 Million for June 2018

payroll, payment to prior year suppliers at Kes. 34.8 Million and part-time lecturers

amounting to Kes.56.7 Million.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June,2019

c. Reserves

Laikipia University maintains three types ofreserves as indicated on the Statement ofchanges

in reserves of the financial statements. The reserves are capital, revenue and revaluation

reserves. During the financial year under review, the University had total reserves of

Kes.l,954,609,930

d. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a

separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any

provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

* Contingentliabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

* Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occulTence or non-occulrenCe of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the

financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments

are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that

an inflow ofeconomic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be

measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial

statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30s June, 2019

e. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower ofcost or net realizable value. Costs ofissues are calculated

using 'First in First Out' (FIFO) method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling

price less any estimated cost of disposal. Inventories are recogrized as an expense when

deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course ofoperations ofthe University.

f. Property, Plant and Equipment

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) 17 stipulates that an entity shall

choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy and shall apply

that policy to an entire class ofproperty, plant and equipment.

In cost model, after recognition as an asset, an item ofproperty, plant and equipment shall be

carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item

will flow to the University and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying

amount ofthe replaced part is derecogrized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to

the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Under revaluation model after recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and

equipment whose fair value can be measured reliably shall be carried at a revalued amount,

being its fair value at the date ofthe revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation

and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations shall be made with sufficient

regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would

be determined using fair value at the reporting date.

The diflerence between the cost model and the revaluation model is that the revaluation model

allows both downward and upward adjustment in value of an asset while cost model allows

only downward adjustrnent due to impairment loss. Upward revaluation is not considered a

normal gain and is not recorded in income statement rather it is directly credited to reseryes

account called revaluation surplus. Revaluation surplus holds all the upward revaluations of a

company's assets until those assets are disposed-off.
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For the Year Ended 306 June,2019

The standard allows revision of estimated useful life which is accounted for prospectively. The

change in the estimate is reported in the current and prospective periods. Previously reported

statements and opening balances do not need to be adjusted to reflect the change in the useful

life estimate. The reasons prior periods don't need to be restated are as follows:

. Change in the useful life estimate does not represent an accounting eror.

. Estimate changes are an inherent and continual part ofthe estimation process.

Depreciation on Revaluation

The asset must continue to be depreciated following the revaluation. However, now that the

asset has been revalued the depreciable amount has changed. In simple terms the revalued

amount should be depreciated over the assets remaining useful life.

Basic calculation process of depreciation remains unchanged between revaluation model or

cost model. Under cost model depreciation is calculated on the basis ofcost less residual value

over the useful life of asset. Under revaluation model depreciation is calculated on the basis of

revalued amount less residual value over the remaining useful life. Under both models

depreciation for the period is charged in profit or loss account.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at

the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

.3. Restate accumulated depreciation proportionately with the change in the gross carrying

amount of the asset (so that the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its

revalued amount); or

.. Eliminate the accumulated depreciation against the gross carrying amount of the asset

(IAS 16 par. 35).

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life. Depreciation on other property

is charged so as to write offthe assets during the estimated useful life, using the straight line

method. Assets acquired during the year will attract full year depreciation while assets disposed

during the year will not be charged the depreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30m June, 2019

The annual depreciation rates used are as follows:-

Buildings - 2.5%

Oflice Equipment - 20%

Furniture&Fittings - 12.5%

Plant, Machinery & Tractors - l0%

Motor Vehicles & Motor Bikes - ZS%

Computer&Accessories - 20o/o

Library Books - 20o/o

Reserves transfer

The depreciation charge on the revalued asset will be different to the depreciation that would

have been charged based on the historical cost ofthe asset. As a result ofthis, IAS 16 permits a

transfer to be made of an amount equal to the excess depreciation from the revaluation reserve

to retained eamings.

Disposal of Assets

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying

amount and are included in the income statement. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts

included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained eamings.

g. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange tansaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial recogrition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Costs associated with maintaining computer

software programmes are recogtized as an expense as incurred. Acquired computer software

licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the

specific software. These costs are amortized on the basis of the expected useful lives. Software

is amortized on a straight line basis over the expected/estimated useful life.

The University reported total intangible assets at Kes. 15,125,700 comprising of Powercampus

atKes9,413,220, asc Timetabling software at Kes. 750,000 and new ERp ABN Unisol at Kes.

4,962,480. Total intangible assets increased by Kes. 4,962,480 as a result of new ERp software

ABN UniSol being implemented by the University.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June,2019

h. Biological Assets

Livestock are valued at the prevailing mmket rates.

Crops are valued at fair value less estimated point of sale costs. Formula for calculating the

value of crops in the field is as follows:

Vc=DxAxYPxSP
MP

Where:

Vc - Value of crop YP - Yield Potential of the crop

D - Age in Days SP - Selling Price per 90-Kg Bag

A - Area in Acres MP - Maturity Period

i. Related Parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise sigrificant influence over the entity, or vice versa.

Members of the University Management Board (UMB) are regarded as related parties and

comprise of the Vice Chancellor, Deputy Vice Chancellor (AF&D), Deputy Vice Chancellor

(A&R), Registrar (Administration), Registrar (Academic) and Finance officer. Their

remuneration in terms of emoluments during the year under review was as follows:

University Management Board Remuneration

Current Vice-Chancellor
Former Vice-Chancellor
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - A&R
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - AFD
Registrar A&R
Registrar Admin.
Finance Officer
Total

20t8t2019
Kes.

I 1,836,208.40

10,223,843.00
5,344,968.00
7,253,011.20
7,253,0t1.20
6,33',7,731.23

48,248,773.03

20t7t2018
Kes.

594,956.55
16,007,308.80
9,941,796.00
7,803,272.00
7,253,011.20
7,253,011.20
7,253,011.20

56,106J66.95

Laikipia University Council is the governing body of the University and therefore a related

party to the University. ln 2}l8l2}l9 financial year, the University Council held various

meetings in line with their mandate as stipulated in the University statutes and the Charter. The

allowances paid to the members were as follows;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30m June,2019
Summary ofCouncll Expenses for 2018n019 F.y.

Sitting Miteage
Name Council Members Allowence Allowance

Kes. Kes.
Dr. Ken Nyaundi
Dr. Moses Siruri Marwa
David Namu Kariuki
Ruth Adhiambo Okowa
Pauline Ngan
Dr. Mary W. Gaturu
Moses N. Gakuru
Susan Arnlango Aletia
Sammy Oleku
Sub Total

600,000

620,000

600,000

280,000

640,000

540,000

540,000

360,000

60,000

424(xXX}

178,332

66,000

252,613
82,690

300,044

69,650

207,472

368,766

59,044

IjE4.6U

Accommod&tion
Kes,

254,800
382,200

4t9,600
127,400

436,800

145,600

327,fio
473,200

54,600

2.621800

Lunch
Allowance

Kes
16,000

4,000

2,000

2,000

8,000

0

0

0

0

ra0@

Honorarium
Kes.

1,044,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1414!!0

Tot l

Kes
2,093,132
1,072,2N
1,274,213

492,W0

I,384,844
75s,250

1,075,072

1,20t,966
173,644

9,52,L417

The University has been operating without a Chancellor after prof. R. Munavu's term expired in
2017/2018 with no replacement from the Govemment.

The Govemment of Kenya is also a related party to the University especially in terms of financing
and policies. During the yezr under review, the National Govemment through the Ministry of
Education disbursed Kes. 861,921,103 for recurrent expenditure and Kes. 2l,l4O,OO7 for capital

expenditure.

j. Employee Benefits @etirement Benelit Costs)

taikipia University, jointly with Egerton, Kisii and Chuka Universities operates a contributory
pension scheme for eligible employees. The assets ofthe scheme are held separately in a fustee
administered fund that is funded by both employees and the University. The University obligation
to the scheme is the contribution of 20olo of basic Salary whereas the employees contribute l0olo of
their basic Salary.

The University also contributes to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF) for staffs in grade I-
IV. Contributions to this fund are determined by the local statutes. Currently, the NSSF rate is at

Kes. 200 per employee per month.
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Notes to the Finsncial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30s June,2019

The University contributions to the above schemes are charged to the Statement of Financial

performance in the year to which they relate. The University has no further obligation once the

contributions have been remitted to the pension fund.

The University has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions ifthe fund does

not hold sufTicient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods. The University's contributions to the defined contribution schemes are

recognized as an employee benefit expense in the year which it relates.

All employees are expected to take their annual leave as and when it matures during the year,

otherwise, forfeit it. Hence there is no accrued annual leave at the statement of financial position

date.

Employee's entitlements to gratuity are recognized when they accrue to contractual employees. A

provision is made for the liability for such entitlements as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the statement of financial position date. Such employees become entitled to the

gratuity on completion of their contracts and the payments out of this are charged to the accrued

gratuity account.

lc Financial Risk Management

The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity

risks. The University's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes

in the business environment and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effect ofsuch risks on its

performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The University's financial risk management

objectives and policies are detailed below;

.3. Credit risk Management

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposiS with banks and financial

institutions as well as credit exposures to students, including outstanding receivables and

committed transactions. Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual

obligations resulting in financial loss to the University. The University's credit risk is primarily

attributable to its receivables. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are

net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the University's management based on

prior experience and their assessment ofthe current economic environment'

Paee I 64
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30fr June, 2019

The credit risk on liquid funds with financial institutions is low, because the counter parties are

banks with high credit-ratings. The University's policy is payment on registration and thus

students' receivables are categorized as either past due or impaired.

The amount that best represents the University's maximum exposurc to credit risk is made up as

follows;

Credit risk Analysis

Details Fully Performing Psst due
Kes.

Impaired Total
Kes.

As at 30 June, 2019
Students Receivables

Other Receivables

Bank Balances

Kes. Kes

As at 30 June,2018
Students Receivables

Other Receivables
Bank Balances

77,269,549

22.292-890

94fi2a79

85.046.132

!i.gf.[2

132,719,663

9t,561,292

s
2;24.2A0.:85

143,739,4t7
105,790,260

a
?,19.512,f22

132,719,63
168,830,840

22.292.8m

l2r.!lr,rz!
s
0

0
a

143,739A17

t05,790,260
85,046,132

il452t !0!
* Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the University will not be able to meet its financial obligations as

they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances,

and the availability of funding from an adequate arnount of committed credit facilities. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the finance department maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the University Management

Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management frarnework for the

management of the university's shor! medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The University manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking

facilities and through continuous monitoring offorecasts and actual cash flows.

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintain sufficient cash to meet the University's
obligations. The university Management Board reviews the cash forecasts regularly and

determines the University's cash requirement
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June,2019

The table below analyses the University's financial liabilities into relevant maturity period

based on the remaining period at the end ofreporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Liquidity risk Analysis
Lessnthan 

Between r-12
Ixtrils Month Months Over 12 Months Totsl

Ka. Kes Kes. Kes.

As rt 30 Jutre,2019
Trade Payables

Contractors
SSP Claims
Prepaid Fees

Borrowings
Caution Money
O,ther Payables

o 177.0,,8,732 2fi,n8J30 4t7,n6,L
As at 30 Jutre,2018
Trade Payables

Contractors
SSP Claims

Prepaid Fees

Bonowings
Caution Money
Other Payables 0

3,r 06,120
74 gil) 632

0 214-024399 242.422.U5 4*-U7.244

.3. Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk - Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and

liabilities. The University operates wholly within Kenya and its assets and liabilities are

denominated in Kenya shillings. The Council therefore believes there is no risk of

significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations.

(ii) Price risk - The University does not hold any financial instruments subject to price risk.

l. Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation'

m, Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is charged to income statement in the year it is

incurred

0

28,492,7U
3,724,763

70,893,780
27,713,388

16,449,339
63,423,479

124,050,034
577,994

0

1,761,s00
34,5 15,804

44,942,123
67,148,242

194,943,814
28,29t,382

0
t7,390,020
65. I 61.321

I 5,628,520
30.645.5 I 6

26,t42,338
2,967,437

75,1 5 1,600

31,756,27?

23,687,488
60,995,716

r05,620,734
500,816

n

16,3 16,400
3s.301.73 r

49,829,826
63.963. I 53

180,772,334

32,257,088
0

19,422,520
to 202 363
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June, 2019

n. Interest on Loans

Interest on loan has been charged as expenses in the year they have been incurred. The

policy is to accrue all un-paid interest relating to the year under review.

o. Tax Exemption

laikipia University is among institutions of higher learning in Kenya. All public

universities are classified under Not-for-profit organizations (Npos) and they enjoy tax

exemptions and incentives from Government because they provide services that positively

influence social welfare. These services should be provided free ofcharge, below cost or at

the very minimum cost. The NPOs include:

D CharitiesNGOs/Trusts

D Churches/Religion Organizations

D Hospitals

F Schoolsfuniversitiesetc

For NPos to be exempt from Income Tax, they must have been established solely to;

. Reliefpoverty or distress ofthe Public

. Advance religion oreducation.

The entity by virtue of being a public university and classified under the Not-for -profit
organizations (NPos) have been exempted from income tax. Npos are exempted from income

tax on income received from the activities of the organization, if the income is wholly used to

support the public benefit purposes for which the organization was established and in this case

to advance education by Public Universities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30t June, 2019

4. Grants & Donations

The University recorded a very small perc€ntage 0.03% on grants and donations totaling to
Kes. 323,830 during the year. The University retains l0oZ on research funds which accounted

for Kes. 95,830 in the 201812019 financial year. Other grants and donations included a

donation of Kes. 115,000 from the Deputy vice chancellor (ARSA), professor wanjiku
Chiuri, for Hyma Day Care in the University.

students' bursaries and loans to students by Higher Education toans board (FIELB) and

National Government-Constituencies Development Funds (NG-CDFs) are accounted directly
to the students' accounts as this is support to the students. ln2}lSllg, HELB awarded loans to
students amounting to Kes.63,226,940, while NG-CDFs and other organizations gave a total of
Kes.42,847,350 to our students as bursaries. Donations and share of research fund to the

University were as follows;

Grants &
20tEt20t9

(30.06.2019)
2017t2018

(30.06.20t8)
Code Description Kes. Kes.

50610 Research Grants 95.830 0
50650 Other Grants & Donations 228.000 0

Sub-Total 323.830 0

)
Paee I 69
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Notes to the Financial Ststements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30t June' 2019

5. Students'Fees

Revenue from students' fees is accounted for over the period in which they relate. Fees paid in

advance are carried forward as excesVprepayments under trade and other payables. During the

period under review, the University recorded students' fees amounting to Kes' 344,780,879.40

translating to27.640/o of total revenue. Tuition fees was the highest atKes.220,676,266.The

following is the breakdown on students' fee

Students'
Code

50010
50060
s0065
50070
50072
50075
50085
s0200
50290
50600
s0620
50625
50630
s0655
50720

50940
50945

201812019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
578,600

t4,690,940
466,500

9,234,980
8,708,250
8,385,59s
1,054,900
9,664,610
2,976,r00

220,676,266
4,482,958

I 1,684,550
14,286,694
32,452,982
4,871,010

s39,945
26,000

344,780,E79

20fin018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
834,535

17,507,47',1

484,000
10,541,1 35

8,744,920
6,746,607

264,610
11,139,420
2,826,020

218,010,405
9,303,402

I 1,225,1 l0
15,754,602
23,109,645

5,090,430

278,445
1,698,130

343,558,893

Fees
Description
Students ID
Examination Fee

Application Fee

Registration
Activity Fee

Convocation Fee

Academic Transcripts
Library Fee

Accommodation
Tuition
Students Medical Fee

Computer Charges
Material Development
Students Supervision Fee

Laboratory Charges

Retakes & SupplementarY
Remarking fees

Sub-Total

Pase | 70 t
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30ff June, 2019

6. 0ther Miscellaneous Income

The University recorded a total of Kes.40,222,388 translating to 3.22o/o of the total income

during the period. Included in other incomes was Kes. 14,115,500 received from insurance for
burnt ICT/Examination building and equipment. An analysis of other incomes for the year is as

follows;

Other Income
Code Description

50015 Miscellaneous Income
50020 NHIF Rebates

50030 Medical Charges - Guests
50040 Campuses Income
50087 Students'Damages
50088 Exam. Cards Replacement
50090 Gain on Disposal of Assets
50160 Hire ofTransport
50180 LibraryFines
50185 LU Marathon
50615 Conference Charges

50640 Rent krcome
50810 Tendering Income
50930 Insurance Claim

Sub-Total

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

737,950

264,378

4,454.422

12,920,750

6,027,30s

1,500

0

247,925

28,087

87t,ss7
0

545,3 l5
5,200

l4,l 15,500

40,22238E

2011t2018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.

70t,429
0

9,628

4,640,000

10,630

21,000

0

4 7,tl0
24,842

846,690

57,218

1,2s9,308

0

0

8,029,724
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June' 2019

7. StaffCosts

The average number of employees during the period was 556 with a composition of 6 members

of the University Management Board, 98 teaching staff and 452 non-teaching staff. The

University incurred a total of Kes. 8'19,832,268 to cater for staff salaries and benefits. Included

in staff costs is compensation to University Management Board amounting to Kes. 48,248,773

for 201812019 as indicated below;

University Management Board Remuneration

Current Vice-Chancellor
Former Vice-Chancellor
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - A&R
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - AFD
Registrar A&R
Registrar Admin.
Finance Olficer
Total

2018t2019
Kes.

l 1,836,208.40

10,223,843.00
5,344,968.00
7,253,011.20
7,253,011.20
6,337,731.23

48,248,773.03

201712018
Kes.

594,9s6.55
16,007,308.80
9,941,796.00
7,803,272.00
7,253,011.20
7,253,011.20
7,253,011.20

56,106J66.95

There were no other related party transactions by the University Management Board members

such as loans or advances or any other item described under IPSAS 20.

The University together with Egerton, Kisii and Chuka Universities operates a defined

contribution staff provident scheme. The University contributes 20%o of basic salary to

pensionable staffin grade 5-15 which totaled Kes. 55,194'308 during the year' The University

has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold

sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current

and prior periods. Employees on contacts are entitled to service gratuity on successful

completion of their contracts and recognized when they accrue. Gratuity to staff on contract

and those retiring is payable at 3l% ofbasic salary for every year worked. The University paid

gratuity amounting to Kes. 23,054,394 during the year.

All employees are expected to take their annual leave as and when it matures during the year,

otherwise, forfeit it. Hence there is no accrued annual leave at the statement of financial

position date. Detailed breakdown to staffcosts during the year is as follows;

llision: .1 Ililt\'($tt\ fuil 1'Ltlnfl lililltlorndttrtt rl \rtttctt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30s June,2019

20tEt20t9

Stalf Costs (30.06.2019)

Code Description Kes.

70010 Basic salary 371,154,514

70020 NSSF (Employer) 584,400

70025 Medical Allowances 12,696,245

70030 Pension (Employer) 55,194,308

70040 House Allowance 183,920,641

70045 Other Personal Allowances 48,472,851

70050 Crratuity 23,054,394

70060 kave Travel 5,279.31s

70090 Commuting Allowance 65,295,290

70100 Casual labour 2,392,901

70105 Hardship Allowance 82.073,777

70160 Passage & Baggage 439,136
'10165 Intemship 896,799

70210 StaffDevelopment/Training 1,661,090

70295 Group Life insurance 8,886,561

70380 StalIFuneral Expenses 754,530

70850 Staff(Dental & Optical) Expenses 985,1l0

71030 StaffMed. Expenses (Hospitalization) 16,052,40s

71905 Tuition Fee Waiver 38,000

Total StafiCosts 879,832,269

2017t2018

(30.06.2018)

Kes.

370,186,667

603,800

t2,805,784

68,622,533

185,637,343

48,t43,773

0

5,442,617

66,305,979

3,055,045

81,922,874

609,740

264,840

l,0l1,436

8,470,816

r80,000

836,678

r5,081,298

0

869,181,221

I Paee I 73
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Notes to the Financial Statcments (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30u June,2019

8. AdministrativeExpenses

The University incurred a total of Kes. 73,922,463 as administrative expenses as itemized

below;

Administrative Expenses
Code Description
701 l0 Travel & Subsistence

701 15 Tax Penalties & Interests

70120 OIEce Stationery
70125 Photocopying ExPenses

70130 Publishing& Printing
70140 Advertising & Publicity
70150 Postage &Telephone
70170 Electricity Expenses

70180 Meeting Expenses

70205 RevaluationofAssets
70240 CleaningMaterials
70250 StaffUniforms
70280 BankCharges
70320 Computercharges & Stationery
70330 General Licenses

70350 Audit Fees

70420 Rents & Rates

70465 Security lnfrastructure
70490 Subscription to UniversitY

MembershipVRegulatory Bodies

70645 TransportoperatingExpenses
70815 Tendering Expenses

70885 QualityAssurance
7l I l0 Maintenance of water & Sewerage

7l 152 Contracted Professional Services

71350 Office Running Expenses

71509 Strategic Plan/Charter Launch

71510 ISO Expenses/Launch

71715 Performance Contracting
71717 Complaints Resolution ExP.

71790 PublicCelebrations
72017 Software Maintenance Expenses

70870 Health Week
Sub Total

2018t2019
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.
22,584,595

0

2,766,s28
203,905
27,000

1,448,319
1,054,910

15,143,0 l5
3,169,382

411,900
467,640
223,392
534,050

2,431,009
152,3 l3
696,000

1,290,000
2,246,530

424,700
8,320,461

123,900
193,164
372,714
57,100

1,103,079
625,200

s,298,578
1,013,847

49,200
20,000

536,899
903,225

73,922,463

2017t2018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
t6,697,206

10,649
1,0r5,91l

652,679
48,720

2,621,690
1,497,796

14,596,987
1,993,715

0

763,347
547,032
606,304

3,074,055
42,600

696,000
1,056,8r2

135,856

24,876
3,873,844

0
t60,632

t,797,754
320,750

1,586,545
0

2,083,469
226,000

0
0

1,541,575
0

57,672,803

PaselT4 !
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Notes to the Financial Stttements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June, 2019

9. Repairs & Maintenance Expenses

An analysis to repairs and maintenance expenses indicated that the University incurred Kes.

5,095,822 on general repairs, while machinery repairs took Kes. 1,624,sg6 as indicated below;

Repain & Maintenance Expenses
Code Description

70190 General Repain
70500 Vehicle repairs
70655 Machinery repairs

Sub Total

10. Contracted Serrices

The University contracted various companies and organizations to offer various services during

2018119 FY. The services included insurance, legal services and cleaning and sanitary. These

services cost the University Kes. 2,667,644 as shown below. lrgal charges decreased

considerably from Kes. 4,100,722in2017/18 to Kes. gl9,07g in 20lg/19 Fy as a result of
University trgal Oflicer taking up most of cases initiatly being handled by University Lawyer.

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
s,095,822

874,649
1,624,586

7,595,057

2017t20t8
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
10,520,246

937,s60

803,327

12,261,132

Contracted Services
Code Description

70230 Vehicleslnsurance
70290 General Insurance -Property
70300 kgal Charges

71055 Cleaning & Sanitary Services

Sub Total

2018D019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
1,206,975

106,991

8r9,078
534,600

2,667,U4

2017t2018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
1,240,621

357,651

4,100,722

390,000

6,0gg,gg4

PaselT5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June, 2019

ll. Academic & Research ExPenses

The University's core mandate is teaching and research, during the year under review, a total

of Kes. 181,082,677 was paid to various activities under this line item.

Academic & Research Expenses

Code Description
70070 Part-time Teaching Costs

70321 Intemet Services

70355 Research Programmes

703'15 Senate Expenses

70445 lntemationalTravel
70450 KUCCPS Expenses

70455 Conference & Seminars

70460 CUE Expenses

70480 Subscription to e-Journals

70485 Subscription to DSTV

70505 TeachingMaterials

70510 Examination Stationery

70515 Laboratory Materials & Reagents

70520 GraduationExpenses

70521 Graduation Cowns

70535 Extemal Examiners (Exam Moderation)

70565 Newspapers, Joumals & Videos

70980 Teaching Practice & Field Attachment

71506 Academic Field Trips

7l5ll Academic Exhibitions

Sub Total

20t812019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

109,332,428

l 8,333,032

499,630

2,500

257,531

3,043,500
2,241,153

1,586,780

r,6s2,535
0

220,790

5,388,866

212,709

8,704.542
I12,000

4,612,781

I,1 33,190

21,055,601

2,406,710

286,400

181,082,677

201712018
(30.06.20r8)

Kes.

86,85 1,436

16,825,287

1,871,350

10,000

301,200
0

2,t48,',|42

900,000

480,000

162,900

9,600

2,564,t84
1,765,720

6,268,89s
0

3,030,500

1,078,810

6,146,950

287,500
104,455

130,807,528

PaeelT6
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June,2019

12. Students Welfare Expenses

Over the years, the University Management Board has made a deliberate decision to provide

access to a percentage of students through a number of ways, among them, Students, bursaries

and work-study programme. The University also supports students through provision of
medical supplies and students' activities like drama and sports. ln 2}lgl2}lg, the University
incurred a total of Kes. 14,096,133 to improve on students' welfare as follows:

2017t2018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
700,000

4,343,969
t,3s0,244
1,740,992

243,300
0
0

168,000
891,600

9,438,105

13. Council Expenses

The University approves formal and transparent remuneration policies to Council members.

These policies clearly stipulate remuneration elements such as meeting attendance/sitting

allowance, transport re-imbursements and honorarium to the Chancellor and Chairperson of
Council in line with the industry. All Council members are paid a taxable sitting allowance of
Kes.20,000 for every meeting attended. During the year under review, the University council
held various meetings to deliberate issues of the University. A total of Kes.9,522,411 was
incurred as compensation to Council members as follows;

The on honorarium to vacancy in of University which has

been vacant since April 2018.

Students Welfare
Code Description
70310 Students'Bursaries
70440 LU Marathon
70860 Students Medical Supplies
70950 Students Miscellaneous A./c
71498 Students Work-study
71517 Drama Festivals
71518 Cultural Week
7 I 5 I 9 Students' Counseling Expenses
71560 Games Exp. (Inter Universities)

Sub Total

2018t2019
(30.06.201e)

Kes.
1,000,000
4,775,885
3,306,487
2,370,350

703,900
s00,000
I 10,000
307,090

1,022,421
14,096,133

Council Expenses
2018t20t9

(30.06.20t9)
2017t2018

(30.06.2018)
Code Kes- Kes.

71 800 Sitting Allowance 4.240.000 4.600"000
Mileage Allowance r,584.61l 1,934.403

7l 800 Accommodation Expenses 2.697.3s9
7t800 Lunch Allowance 32.000 46.000
71800 Honorarium 1.044.000 I

Sub Total 9.522.411 11,221.762

Paee I 77
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June,2019

14. Finance Charge

Finance charge is any fee representing the cost ofcredit, or the cost ofborrowing. It is interest

accrued on, and fees charged for, some forms ofcredit. It includes not only interest but other

charges as well, such as financial transaction fees. The University had no outstanding loan

balance in20l8l20l9 hence no expenditure was incurred'

Finance Charge 201812019 201712018

Code DescriPtion Kes' Kes

71520 toan Interest 0 1,092,097

Sub Total 0 1,092,097

15. Depreciation

For the purpose of depreciation, all assets were given a new lease of life by netting

accumulated depreciation brought forward and cost of asset giving them a new life cycle. The

total depreciation charged during the year was Kes'14,933,740. Full year depreciation was

charged on Net Book Values before revaluation, while the depreciation on revaluation gain

resulting to excess depreciation was charged pro-rata for two (2) months (May-June 2019)' A

transfer for excess depreciation amounting to Kes.2,803,924 was made between revaluation

and revenue reserves.

Depreciation 201812019 201712018

CoOe DescriPtion Kes Kes'

T20l8Property,Plant&Equipment14'287,66614'596'793
72018 LibiarYBooks 646,074 135'377

Sub Total 14,933,740 14,732,170

16. Bad Debts

Bad debt is an expense that a business incurs once the repayment ofcredit previously extended

to a customer is estimated to be uncollectible. Bad debt is a contingency that must be

accounted for by all businesses who extend credit to customers, as there is always a risk that

payment will not be received. As a result, a provision for bad and doubtful debts need to be

included in the income statement. laikipia University made a general provision for bad and

doubtful debts on receivables from exchange transaction at the close of 2018/2019 FY.

Excluded from the provision for bad debts was receivable from non-exchange ffansaction since

it had already been received from the govemment in July 2019 and catered under post balance

sheet events. Irrecoverable debts are also written off as an expense in the income statement.

Details of this line item are as follows;

l'ision: A Ilnttersttt' lrtr l dlil&l I ntll(,rnilltrnr ttl Srrrclt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June,2019

Bad Debts
(i) Provision for Bad Debts

Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Less Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts @ l0olo
Nct Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non- Exchange Transactions
Total Net Receivables
Increase(Decrease) in Provision for Bad Debts

20lEt20t9
Kes.

224,280,955
22,428,095

201,852,E59

77,269,549
279,122,408
(2,s24,872)

2017t20t8
Kcs.

249,529,677

24,952,968
224,576,709

0
224,576,709

2,294,8t6

(ii) Bad Debts Wrinen-olf 2l7JEt20tg 20t7l2Lta
Provision for Bad Debts Kes. Kes.
Farm Dues 34,370 0
Bookshop Dues 450 0
Medical Dues 0 OImprests 0 0
Total Debts Written off 34,g20 0

The negative figure on provision for bad debs was as a result ofdecrease in receivables from

exchange transaction.

17. Loss on Assets DispossyDe.recognition

The University de-recogrized assets with a cost of Kes. 10,g0g,35g and accumulated

depreciation ofKes. 9,276,094 during the year 2}l8l21l9. De-recognized buildings were as a

rtsult of demolition of Ngomongo Estate at a cost of Kes. 1,245,000. computers at a cost of
Kes. 5,965,285 were part of items burnt in the ICT/Examination building. In addition, the

University lost computers at a cost ofKes.1,962,500 through theft raising security concern. All
the de-recognized/disposed assets had Net Book Values ofKes.l,532,263 but on Kes. 39,500

was recovered on disposal of scrap assets leading to a loss of Kes. 1,492,7 63.

Summery of Assets De-rccognition/Disposal
S/l{o Asset Cless CosU Accumulated Net Book Disposa!

Valuation Depreciation Value b/f Amount
bll

I Buildings
2 Fire Fighting Equipment
3 Kitchen Equipment
4 Office Equipment
5 Public Address Systems
6 Tuition Equipment
7 Fumiture & Fittings
8 Computer & Accessories

I,245,000
t87,201
3t,361

427,s00
103,000
296,0N
590,5 I 0

7,927,78s
10,808,358

588,03 I
t87,201

3 I,361
414,468
6l,800

296,000
484,724

7,212,509
9,276,094

Gain/(Loss)
on DisposaU

Derecognition
(656,969)656,969

n

0
t3,032
41,200

0
105,786
7t5,276

1,532,263

0
5,500
2,000
1,000

0
30,000

1,000
0

39,500

5,500
2,000

(12,032)
(41,200)

30,000
(104,786)
(7ts,276)

(1,492,763)

PaselT9
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Notes to the Financial Statemenb (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30b June,2019

18. Farm Operations

Farm Trading, Profit And Loss Account
For The Period Ended 30th June' 2019

Details

Sales
Cost ofSales
Gross ProfiU(Loss)

Expenses
Net Profit(Loss)

19. Catering 0perations

Catering Trading, Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended 30s June, 2019

Details

Sales
Cost of Sales
Gross ProfiU(Loss)

Expenses
Net ProfiU(Loss)

20ta2u9
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.
2,320,577
1,819,618

500,959

r,245,666
(744,7O7)

2018120t9
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
7,207,404
'1,445,919

(238,515)

265,190
(503,705)

20t712018
(30.06.20r8)

Kes.
3,428,01I
4,018,902
(590,891)

1,155,295
(1,746,187)

2017D018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
4,742,517
3,928,4r5

814,102

698,258
I l5'8.14

20. Bookshop/lVledical Operations

Bookshop/lVledical Trading, Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended 30m June,2019

201812019

Deteils (30.06.2019)
Kes.

Sales 0

Cost ofSales 0

Gross ProfiU(Loss) 0

Expenses
Net Profit/(Loss)

0
0

2017t2018
(30.06.201E)

Kes.
501,460

0
501,460

4t,732
459,728

NB: operations for Medical Department were transferred to main University operations as

Medical is not classified under profit making units.
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Notes to the Finencirl Statcments (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30th June,2019

21. Cash & Cash Equivrlents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other

short term highly liquid investrnents with original matruities of three months or less.

Brnk Account Neme

KCB Main Account

KCB Nakuru Account

KCB Development Account

KCB Research Account

KCB FarmAccount

KCB Catering Account

KCB Boolshop Account

KCB - Mararal Fees Account

KCB - Mararal CDF Account

Co-operative Fees Account

Co-operative Bank Fees Account

Cooperative Bank Nyahururu Fees Account

Co-operative Bank Naivasha Account

Co-operative Bank - Marathon Account

Co<perative Bank - Gratuity/Caution Money
Account
Equity Fees Account

Chancellors & Alumni Endowment Fund
Account
MPESA Pay bill

Total

Crsh il Hend

Total Cesh & Cesh Equivelent

Account
Number

20tEl20t9
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
16,391,087.28

204,452.35

7ll,093.70

160,704.20

463,230 05

95 1,208. l0

I,289,165. l0
252,837.93

95,889.30

958,709 00

I 53,878.66

400,000.00

239,246.00

22,271,502

20t7t20tE
(30.06.201E)

Kca.
35.992.986

9,575,733

6,579,069

892,563

t,368,742

402,433

733,982

4,568,325

t,290,615

7,986,708

l I,128,469

100,557

968,280

I 53,879

2,858,057

400,000

t7,230

t3,017,627

I 102 l6 I 683

I 101 909080

I 120980534

n25437723

I l02l6t55t
I 102168688

lL02161829

1135920710

n349t3397

1t29025576702

I l29s0l 778000

1129037271600

|29037293400

I 120036453400

l 100036453400

160295840456

t60264998833

829850

2t,3E9

22292,E90

28,504

E5,046,132

Page | 8l
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June,2019

22. Accounts Receivables

Students' Fees balances were the highest amount ofreceivables at Kes. 132,719,663. Clean-up

on all students' balances is on-going to establish the correct receivables. Included in

receivables is campuses income of Kes.64,294,394 which has been outstanding in our books

for some time. A reconciliation exercise is on-going to establish the correct receivables from

these campuses and a joumal entry will be passed to correct the elrors on completion.

(i) Receivable from Exchange Transactions

Details
Students'Fee Balances

Fee Receivable Egerton University
Eldoret Campus (Elgon View) Studens'Account
Nakunr Campus Students' Account
Embu Campus Students' Account
Nakuru Campus Director's Salary Account
Embu Campus Directo/s Salary Account
Farm Debtors
Bookshop Debtors
Medical Debtors
Salary Advance
kasehold
Un-surrendered lmprests
Deposis & Pre-payments
SSP Tax
LU Deductions
Council Allowances
Laikipia University Students' Organization
Contractors (Capital Projects)
Receivable on Assets DisPosal

Total
Lrss Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts @ l0%
Net Receivable from Exchange Transactions

(ii) Receivablefrom Non-exchangeTransactions

Details
G.O.K. Capitation - Recurrent
Total

Total Net Receivables

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
132,7t9,663

1,862,823
3,566,894
7,854,s00

52,873,000
8,964,325
4,5t0,496

310,817
l8,ll4
60,257

124,01l
1,276,033

326,906
8,699,842
1,081,324

0
0

201712018
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
143,739,4t7

1,862,823
3,566,894
2,016,134

55,91 8,800
5,000,810
4,510,496

345, I 87
18,564
60,257

124,01I
1,327,733
1,548,903
8,669,064
2,251,012

17,009,455
0

468,033
1,092,085

0
249,529,677

24,952,968
224,576,709

0

3 1,950
224280,955

22,428,095
201,852,859

77,269,549
77,269,549

279,122,408

0
0

224,576,709

Pase I 82
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30s June,20l9

23. Inventories

The accounting for inventory involves determining the correct unit counts comprising ending

inventory, and then assigning a value to those units. The University conducts a physicat

count/stock taking on inventories held at the close ofeach financial year. The resulting costs

are then used to record an ending inventory value for recogtition in the statement of financial

position. The University recorded closing inventory of Kes.17,676,910 during the year as

follows;

Inventory Stores Summary By Classification As At 30th June, 2019

Inventories ,rr'.'r'.:i11'; ,rr'.'r?.1'rlll
Kes. Kes.

Animal Feeds 399,636 342,460
Boma Rhode Hay-Bales 73,350 169,6g0
Carpentry Materials 1,617,956 l,glg,154
Chemicals & Fertilizers 245,410 2gg,4g3
Cleaning Materials 82,943 509,340
Diesel/ Petro/Lubricants 3,434 37,726
Dry Foodstuff t47,l92 169,206
Electrical Appliances 608,789 779,063
Gift Shop ltems 39t,2OB 232,138
Harvested crop/Seeds 174,725 lg2,l05
Harvested Oats (Crain & Bales) 0 93,460
Linens&Curtains 0 91,g00
Masonry Materials 874,234 136,425
Medical Drugs/Reagents 2,979,007 l,ZS2,g57
Medical laboratories Apparatus 709,419 234,267
Oflice Stationery 2,990,808 2,5g7,759
Painting Materials 72O,O5O 701,.:.10
Perishable Foodstuff 163,000 27,750
Plumbing Materials 921,037 1,126,233
Science Laboratories Apparatus 1,709,100 l,Og4,6j6
Science l.aboratory Reagents 2,OBB,9S4 515,970
Tools & Spare parts 528,010 1,212,414
Vet Drugs 1,580 47,600
Welding Materials 197,080 15,906
Total 17,676,910 l3,1,17,0gl

l ision: I | :iltvrvtt lt)r I rtlrtLtl l rotttl,,rn,tttrtt rl .\oL tLrt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June' 2019

24. Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) 17 stipulates that an entity shall

choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy and shall apply

that policy to an entire class ofproperty, plant and equipment. During the year under review,

the University revalued all assets in all classes therefore adopting revaluation model.

Before revaluation, University Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) had cost brought forward

of Kes.1,719,524,784 with accumulated depreciation of Kes. 299,348,806. The University

derecogtized PPE at cost amounting to Kes. 10,466,357.51 with accumulated depreciation of

Kes.9,276,094.21. Also derecognized were computers purchased and lost within the year

amounting to Kes.342,000. Cumulatively, PPE had a net book value of Kes. 1,418,985,714.37.

The assets were revalued in the month of May 2019 to Kes' 932,325,113.39 except for work-

in-progress with a cost of Kes. 1,046,763,704.87. New value of assets increased to Kes.

1,979,088,818.26 resulting to a gain on revaluation of Kes. 560,103,103.89 which was

accounted for under revaluation reserve as required by TPSAS I 7 and IAS I 6'

The University also added new assets at a cost of Kes.66,264,1 12 which did not form part of

the revaluation as the assets were acquired during the year and therefore the difference between

their costs and fair market value on revaluation will not be material' Total cost and valuation

carried forward was Kes. 2,045,010,930. Depreciation computed on this figure was Kes.

14,287,665.88 resulting to net book value on PPE of Kes. 2,030,723,264'32'

A transfer was made on excess depreciation as a result of revaluation of Kes.2,803,923.68

between revaluation reserve and revenue reserve.

l'isiotr: I ltttttL'r\tlt h)t l olrttLl I runthnntrttnt ttl \rt,r,'tt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Yesr Ended 30s June' 2019

25. Librara Books

The University recorded library books at the start ofthe financial year at Kes.14,368,473 with

accumulated depreciation of Kes.14,274,935. Net book Value on library books was therefore

Kes.93,538.20. On revaluation, value ofbooks increased to Kes.7,531,150 resulting to a gain on

revaluation of Kes.7,437,611.80. Additions on library book during the year at cost w.ls

Kes.1,897,230. Cost and valuation carried down was Kes.9,428,380 (7,531'150+l'897,230)'

Computed depreciation on new value oflibrary books was Kes. 646,074.03 resulting to a net book

value of Kes.8,7 82,305.97 .

t Librarv books

Cost/Valuttion KR
at 14.368.473

Disoosal

8 14J68,473

at st
I 4, I 39,558

ffiiesDisposedAdi

at

r4,274,933
93.a}8

w)64,473

(l4.368.473)

7.53 t.l 50

1,897,230
9,428,380

As at 14.274.93s

Accumlltated Depreciatlon on Asss@
(14,274,935)

As at 30th June.2019 646.U4

3fth June.20l9 8.7E2,305.97

I ition: 1 ( nttLrrtlr lt)r lltll&l I rttttlt'rnurt'ttt tt/ \t ttlt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30s June,2019

26. Intangible Assets

IPSAS 3l prescribes the accounting treaftnent for intangible assets that are not dealt with
specifically in any other IPSAS. It requires an entity to recogrize an intangible asset if, and only
if, specified criteria are met. The Standard also specifies how to measure the carrying amount of
intangible assets and requires specified disclosures about intangible assets. The accounting

treatment for an intangible asset is to record the asset as a long-term asset and amortize the asset

over its useful life, along with regular impairment reviews.

The University recorded intangible assets amounting to Kes. 15,125,700 with no amortization as

they are still under work-in-progress. ABN Unisol. is currently being implemented and will be

capitalized once complete. We are in the process of de-recognizing Power Campus Software since

its implementation failed.

20t7t20tt ERP Sofltwrm
CosUVrlustion Ke3.

at 20t7 9.413 220
750.000

20r8 I 0,1 6t.220

lst 0
0

at 0
Book 201 10.16I.220

As at lst 10.163.220
Additions 4.962.480
As rt
Accumulated Amortization
As at n

for the Year 0
As st 30th Jung 2019 o

as st 30th l5.ta17(n

Summary of Intangible Assels
Power Campus (World Span)
aSc Software (Exarn/Tinetabling 20 I 7/l 8)
ABN Unisol.

Amount (K$.)
9,4t3,220.00

750,000.00
4,962,480.00

1s,125,700.00

Pase I 87
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30h June' 2019

27. Biological Assets

lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) 27 and lntemational Accounting

Standards (IAS) 41, prescribe the accounting featrnent of biological assets. The standards

generally require biological assets to be measured at fair value less costs to sell. The University

recorded a total ofKes.5 ,624,500 as biological assets at the close of20l8/2019 FY year.

2017t2018
(30.06.20r8)
Kes.

4,956,000
800,000
275,100

6,031,100

28. Overdrawn Cashbooks

The University does not operate bank overdrafu. However our cashbooks were overdrawn due to

receipting errors under the power campus software which does not receipt excess fees but the

money had already been deposited to our bank accounts. As a result cheques written on these

cashbooks indicated overdrawn accounts but in actual sense there were no overdrafu in the

affected bank accounts. The overdrawn cash books are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Overdrawn Cash Books

Account 20182019 20l7l20lE

Bank Account Name Number (30'06'2019) (30'06'2018)

Kes. Kes.

Biological Assets

Detail
Cattle
Boma Rhodes in Field

Tree Nursery seedlings

Total

KCB Nyahururu Main Account

KCB Nakuru Account

KCB - Mararal Fees Account

Co-operative Fees Account

Co-operative Bank Account

Co-operative Bank Nyahururu Account

Equity Account

Grand Total

201812019
(30.06.201e)

Kes.
5,278,000

0

346,500
5,624,500

I 102161683

l 101909080

I 135920710

1129025576',102

I 129501778000

t1290372'71600

160295840456

456,508

248,134

2,474,000
1,364,160

2.3 t 8,34s

6,861,147

8l1,959

8lrBs9

0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30m June, 2019

29. Accounts Payables

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities/short-term payables ifpayment is due within
one year or less. If no! they are presented as non-current liabilities/long-term payables. The

University recorded payables amounting to Kes.417,876.902 under short-term payables with no
pending long-term payable. Part-time teaching cost were the highest at Kes.194,943,814 due to
recogrition of prior years' claims raised in 2018/19 Fy.

Accounts Payables

(i) Short term Payables
Deteils
Trade Payables

Audit Fees Payable (KENAO)
Contractors -Capital Projects

Part-time Teaching Costs

Accrued Council Honoraria
Students Caution Money
Excess Fees (Prepaid Tuition)
Laikipia University Students, Organization (LUSO)
Alumni Account
Salary & deductions payable
2010-2013 CBA Basic & House Arrears payable

StaffMedical Claims (Dental & Optical)
Other staffclaims
Rent & Leasehold in Advance
Rent Deposits Payables

Pay As You Eam (PAYE) Payable -Council Members
Kenya Revenue Authority (VAT & lncome Tax
Payable)

Nakuru Campus (Cash-in-Transit)

Total

(ii) Long term Payables

long-term Liabilities
Totel

2018t20t9
(30.06.201e)

Kes.
44,942,123

1,428,000

67,148,242

194,943,814

87,000
t7,390,020
28,291,382

90,442

2,279,105

36,022,140

4,497,589

42,279

439,740

1,217,076

50,000

282,600

13,925,351

4,800,000

417,E76,902

2017t20t8
(30.06.2018)

Kes.
49,829,826

1,428,000

63,963,1s4
180,772,334

87,000
19,422,520

32,257,088

2,119,285

93,6s2,287

4,497,s89

306,507

700,600

1,217,076

50,000

674,100

5,469,919

0

4X,447,2U

Kes.

0

0

Kes.

0

0

I'ision: 1 I lttt* rtrtt futr Iltlil(tl I rdn\k)rltLtttt,n tl .\t\.trtl
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June, 2019

30. Movement in Working CaPital

Changes in net working capital are the difference in the working capital from the current year and

the previous year. Working capital is a financial metric which represents operating liquidity

available to an organization. It is the capital ofa business which is used in its day+oday trading

operations, calculated as the current assets minus the current liabilities'

During the year under review, the University recorded a decrese in working capital of Kes'

96,629,300 as indicated below;

Changes in Working Capital 
Working

20l8l20l9 201712018 CaPital

ITEM (30.06.2019) (30.06.2018) Changes)
Kes. Kes. Kes.

(i) Receivables 279,122,408 224,576,'709 (54'545,699)

(ii; Inventory 17,676,910 13,757,091 (3,919'819)

(iiii payautei 4t7,876,902 4s6,447,284 (38,570,382)

(iv) Biological Assets 5,624,500 6'031'100 406'600

Total 720300,720 700,812'184 (96'629'300)

31. Purchase ofNon-current Assets

For purposes of cash flow statement, all assets acquired during the period are accounted use of

funds under cash flows on investing activities. It is the money paid out to acquire investment in

assets. ln 2}l8l2}lg, the University incurred a total of Kes.34,527,983 for purchase of non-

current assets. Details of additional assets during the year are as follows;

l'ition: .-1 ( ln^t r\ttt fu)r lilu*l I rutt:l,trtttrtt)tt t)l *)ct(tl
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 306 June,2019
Purcbase of Non-Current Assets
O Purchase of Oflice Equipment

Oflice Equipment
Public Address System
Science Lab Equipment
Fire Fighting Equipment
Water Supply Equipment
Sports Equipment
Sub-Total

(ii) Plan( Machinery & Tractors
Farm Machinery
Tractors
Other Machinery
SuETotal

(iii) Motor Vehictes
Motor Vehicle - Ambulance
Sub-Total

(iv) Furniturc & Fittings
Office Fumiture
Suh.Total

(v) Computers & Accessories
Computers & Appliances
local Area Networks (LAN)
Sub-Total

(vD Library Books
Library Books
Sub-Total

(viD Intangibte Assets ERp
ERP Software
Sub-Total
Total Additional Assets

32. Additional Work-in-Progress

2018t20t9
Kes.

2,007,600
658,400

7,893,700
I 13,000

23.000

578,120
t1,273,820

400,000

2,800,000
730,628

3,930,52E

5,499,104
5,499,704

248,495
248,495

3,722,100
2,993,476
6,715,576

1,897,230

1,E97,230

20t7t20t8
Kes.

0
253,856

3,00 I,000
0

0

399,470

3,6543.26

2,015,270

0

U

0

0

0

0

0

4,962,480
4,962,480

34,527,933

20tEt20t9

2,015,270

7s0,000
750,000

6,419,596

20r7t20t8
Kes.

1,184,862
8,079,050
7,382,977

582,969
0

32,709,526

a
IUJ:U^3E5

0

0

work-in-Progress is the total value of the materials and labour for unfinished projects. The
University incurred a total of Kes.38,595,889 as additional costs to the on-going capital projects.

Capitat Project
Detlils
University Gate
Sewerage Treatment works & Wetlands
New Library & Admin Block
Scrence Laboratories
Renovation of Students Hostels - Ngare Narok
Tuition Block
Sports Grounds & Pavilion
Total

Kes.
lL6,290

0
r 7,85 1,595

166,601

444,4N
I 7,858,800
2.158.203

3E5I5JE9

Paee I 9l
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